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Middlesex Borough Schools*

— Excellence — Equity — Empowerment ——

300 John F. Kennedy Drive
Middlesex, NJ 08846

Frederick D. Williams, Ed.D Beth Brooks
Superintendent of Schools Business Administrator

Board Secretary
January 31, 2022

Honorable President and Members of the Board of Education
Borough of Middlesex School District

300 John F. Kennedy Drive

Middlesex, NJ 08846

Dear Members of the Middlesex Board of Education:

The annual comprehensive financial report of the Middlesex Borough School District (the
“District”) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the
accuracy of the data and completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures,
rests with the management of the Middlesex Board of Education. To the best of our knowledge
and belief, the data presented in this report is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a
manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various
funds of the district. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the
district’s financial activities have been included.

The annual comprehensive financial report is presented in five sections: introductory, financial,
basic financial statements, required supplementary information, and other supplementary
information. The introductory section includes this transmittal Ietter, the roster of officials,
consultants and advisors, and the District’s organizational chart. The financial section includes
the independent auditor’s report and the management’s discussion and analysis. The basic financial
statements include the district-wide financial statements, fund financial statements, and notes to
the financial statements. The required supplementary information reports on budget comparisons
for the general and special revenue funds. The other supplementary information consists of various
financial statements, statistical information and single audit. The District is required to undergo an
annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1996, the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance)
and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08. Information related to this single audit, including the
anditor’s report on the internal control structure and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations and findings and recommendations, are included in the single audit section of this
report.



Honorable President and Members of
the Board of Education

Borough of Middlesex School District
January 31, 2022

1.

REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: The Borough of Middlesex School District
is an independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the Financial Accounting
Standard Board (“FASB”) as established by Governmental Accounting Standard Board
(“GASB”) in codification section 2100. All funds of the District are included in this report.
The Borough of Middlesex School District and all its schools constitute the District’s
reporting entity.

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels
Kindergarten through twelve, as well as education for children with special needs to grades
pre-school through Age 21. The District completed the 2020-21 fiscal year with an average
daily enrollment of 2,009 students, which is a decrease of 67 students from the previous
year’s average enrollment. The following details the changes in the average student
enrollment of the District over the last ten years.

Fiscal Year Average Daily Enrollment Percent Change
2020-2021 2,009 -3.23%
2019-2020 2,076 0.09%
2018-2019 2,074 -0.38%
2017-2018 2,082 0.00%
2016-2017 2,082 0.92%
2015-2016 2,063 -0.77%
2014-2015 2,171 -1.42%
2013-2014 2,109 -1.91%
2012-2013 2,150 -0.19%
2011-2012 2,154 2.09%

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK: The Borough of Middiesex has not
experienced any significant population increase or increase in business and industry.

MAJOR INITIATIVES: The Middlesex Borough Public School system is comprised of

six schools: three elementary (which may include PreK-3), one Intermediate school (4-5),
one Middle School (6-8), and one high school (9-12). The middle school, originally
comprised of grades 4-8, was officially split into two schools in the 2020-2021 school year
with approval from the Department of Education. The District is committed to continue to
make improvements to the facilities to ensure a safe and secure environment for students,
staff and the community. During the 2019-2020 school year we completed the Middlesex
High School foods room which was essential as we move towards a Career and Technical
Education Program in Culinary Arts. We are also working to secure approval for and
implementing a Pre-Engineering Program as an additional CTE program at the high school.
We received approval from the Department of Education for our Teacher Education Career
and Technology Program. This program began in September 2021 and will prepare
students, interested in becoming teachers, for the next phase of their educational journey.
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We also finished the Parker Elementary School boiler plant replacement. Replacement of
unit ventilators and various heating, air conditioning and indoor air Quality improvements
were completed at Von E. Mauger Middle School. At Watchung Elementary School the
main sewer line was replaced.

3. MAJOR INITIATIVES (CONTINUED): Within the next year, the district is planning to
upgrade the electrical at the Hazelwood and Watchung Elementary Schools, and is
completing a partial sewer line and partial roof replacement, as well as a hot water system
replacement at the High School. The district is moving forward with approximately a $7
million budget neutral referendum to be voted on by the residents on March 8, 2022, If
successful, the funding will be used replace roofs, upgrade fire alarm systems, and address
parking lot drainage and lighting issues. We continually review and revise the
instructional programs to align with the NJ Student Learning Standards in order to prepare
our students for college and career. Curricular material was purchased to support the
instructional program as we continue to ensure that all scholars have access to technology
needed for instructional programming. We maintained our Tier 3 interventions which
include a Reading Specialist and a Reading Recovery program at one of our three primary
schools, continued support of Tier 3 intervention for mathematics, and added a Reading
Specialist at the Intermediate and Middle school to service grades 4-8. We continued
supporting our gifted and talented program, STEM initiatives, and the middle school
“Maker Space,” in which students explore science, math and technology as they create
using Legos, Little Bifs, technology enhanced resources, and a 3D printer. In September
2021, we launched our Middlesex 2 Middlesex Initiative that provides students, within a
cohort model, the opportunity to complete an Associates Program through Middlesex
College while also ecarning a high school dipioma. An additional cohort of twenty-five
(25) students will be added yearly and we anticipate our first Middlesex 2 Middlesex
Cohort to graduate with a high school diploma and an Associate’s Degree in June 2025.

4. INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS: Management of the District is responsible for
establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets
of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate
accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The internal control
structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives
are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control
should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and
benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District is also responsible for
ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with
applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure
is also subject to periodic evaluation by the District’s management.
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As part of the District’s single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the
adequacy of the internal control structure. This includes that portion related to federal and
state financial assistance programs, as well as determining that the district has complied
with applicable laws and regulations.

5. BUDGETARY CONTRQLS: In addition to internal accounting controls, the District
maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure
compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by
the voters of the municipality. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general
fund, the special revenue fund, and the debt service fund. Project-length budgets are
approved for the capital improvements accounted for in the capital project fund. The final
budget amount as amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section. An
encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a
line item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either cancelled or are included as re-
appropriation of fund balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be reappropriated
are reported as reservations of fund balance at June 30, 2021.

6. ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS: The District’s accounting records reflect
generally accepted accounting principals, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). The accounting system of the District is organized on the basis
of funds. These funds are explained in “Notes to the Financial Statements”, Note 1.

7. DEBT ADMINISTRATION: The District passed a $10-million-dollar bond referendum
in December 1997, in order to satisfy physical needs of its facilities that were identified in
a 1994 needs assessment survey. Information related to the District’s outstanding debt is
recorded in the long-term debt schedules of the comprehensive annual financial report. In
June of 2005 the District refinanced the bonds which resulted in savings of future interest
payments of the life of the outstanding debt. The opportunity arose again to refinance the
debt, and in Jannary 2015 this debt was refinanced and has saved the district an average of
$50,000 a year on debt service for the next seven years. The last debt payment on this bond
will be April 2021. The district is planning a budget neutral referendum vote March 8§,
2022 for approximately $7 million.

8. CASH MANAGEMENT: The investment policy of the district is guided in large part by
state statute as detailed in “Notes to the Financial Statements”, Note 2. The District has
adopted a cash management plan, which requires it to deposit public funds in public
depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Government Unit Deposit
Protection Act (“GUDPA”). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect governmental units
from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. The law
requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in public depositories located in
New Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the act.
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the Board of Education
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9. RISK MANAGEMENT: The District carries various forms of insurance, including but
not limited to general lability, excess liability, automobile liability and
comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on property and contents, and
fidelity bonds.

10. QTHER INFORMATION: Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by
independent certified public accountants or registered municipal accountants. The
accounting firm of Suplee, Clooney & Company, CPAs was selected by the Board of
Education. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statufes, the audit
also was designed to meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1994, the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance) and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08. The auditor’s report
on the basic financial statements and combining and individual fund statements and
schedules is included in the financial section of this report. The auditor’s reports related
specifically to the single audit section of this report.

11. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS: We would like to express our appreciation to the members
of the Borough of Middlesex Board of Education for their concern in providing fiscal
accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the school disirict and thereby contributing
their full support to the development and maintenance of cur financial operation. The
preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and
dedicated services of our financial and accounting staff.

Respectfully submmed
Frederick D. Williams, Ed.D. Beth Brooks
Superintendent of Schools Business Administrator/Board Secretary
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SUPLEE, CLOONEY & CoOMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122
Telephone 908-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535

E-mail info@@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Borough of Middlesex School District
County of Middiesex

Middlesex, New Jersey 08846

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities and each major fund of the Borough of Middlesex School District, in the
County of Middlesex, State of New Jersey (the “District”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, audit requirements prescribed by the Division
of Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey, the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and State of New Jersey OMB Circular
15-08 “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid.” Those
standards and provisions require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due fo fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control reievant
to the District’'s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate fo provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and each
major fund of the District as of June 30, 2021, and the respective changes in financial position, and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generaily accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management's Discussion and Analysis, budgetary comparison information in Exhibit C-1 through C-
3, the schedules related to accounting and reporting for pensions in Exhibit L-1 through L-4 and the
schedules related to accounting and reporting for postretirement benefits other than pensions (OPEB)
in Exhibit M-1 and M-2 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmenta! Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

10
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Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary
information schedules such as the introductory section, combining statements and individual fund
financial statements, the statistical section and the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and
State Financial Assistance, as listed in the table of contents, as required by the Uniform Guidance,
State of New Jersey's OMB Circular 15-08, “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants,
State Grants and State Aid,” and the State of New Jersey, Depariment of Education, Division of
Finance, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements and the Schedules of Expenditures of
Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance, as listed in the table of contents, as required by the
Uniform Guidance, State of New Jersey’s OMB Circular 15-08, "Single Audit Policy for Recipients of
Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid,” and the State of New Jersey, Department of Education,
Division of Finance is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly o
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and
individual fund financial statements, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state
financial assistance are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

The other information, such as the introductory and statistical sections, has not been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
January 31, 2022 on our consideration of the Borough of Middlesex School District's internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal control over financial reporting

and compliance.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

fubt 1 L.

PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTANT NO. 948

January 31, 2022
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS -
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BOROUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOOL. DISTRICT
MIDDLESEX, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
UNAUDITED

This section of the Borough of Middlesex School District’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report
presents our discussion and analysis of the District's financial performance during the fiscal year
ended on June 30, 2021. Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this
report and the District's financial statements, which immediately follow this section.

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of Required Supplementary
Information specified in the Governmental Accounting Standards Board's (GASB) Statement No. 34 -
Basic Financial Statements-Management's Discussion and Analysis-for the State and lLocal
Governments. Certain comparative information between the current fiscal year and the prior fiscal
year is presented in the MD&A. In fiscal year 2021 the District implemented GASB Statement No. 84-
Fiduciary Activities. Prior fiscal year 2020 information was restated where information was available.

Financial Highlights

¢ At the district-wide financial statements, revenue from governmental activities accounted for
$51,686,791.37 or 99.18 percent of total school district revenue. The other 0.82 percent of
revenue was generated by the business type activities.

» The Board of Education transferred $255,994.44 by resolution at year end into the
maintenance reserve fund creating a balance of $759,294 44 for future maintenance and
transferred $2,000,000.00 by resolution at year end into the capital reserve fund and deposited
$280,975.76 of unused closed capital projects into the capital reserve fund creating a balance
of $4,653,507.23 for future capital projects.

» Debt Service for bonds payable decreased 50.29% in 2020-2021.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’'s basic
financial statements. The District’s basic financial statements comprise three components:
1) district-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic
financial statements. This document also contains required and supplementary
Government-Wide Financial Statements

District-Wide Financial Statements

The district-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
District's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the assets, deferred inflows and outflows and
liabilities of the District, with the difference between the four reported as net position. Over time, increases
or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District
is improving or deteriorating.
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BOROUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOOL DISTRICT
MIDDLESEX, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
UNAUDITED

The statement of activities presents information showing how the net position of the District changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardiess of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal
pericds (e.g., earned but unused vacation leave).

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a group of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District, like other state and local governments, uses
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the
funds of the District can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

The District maintains two funds types:

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the district-wide financial statements. However, unlike the district-
wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows
of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal
year. Such information may be useful in evaluating government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the district-wide financial statements. By doing so,
readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions.
Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balance provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

The District maintains four individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balance for the general fund, special revenue fund, capital projects fund and debt service
fund, all of which are considered o be major funds.

The District adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund, special revenue fund and debt
service fund. Budgetary comparison statements have been provided as required supplementary
information for the general fund, special revenue fund and debt service fund to demonstrate compliance
with this budget.
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BOROUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOOL DISTRICT
MIDDLESEX, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
UNAUDITED
Proprietary funds. The District maintains one proprietary fund type. Enterprise funds are used to
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the district-wide financial
statements. The District uses an enterprise fund to account for the operations of its food service
program and community school program.

Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential for a
full understanding of the data provided in the district-wide and fund financial statements.

Other information. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with governmental funds
and enterprise funds are presented immediately foliowing the notes to the basic financial statements.

Financial Highlights
District-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the District, assets exceeded liabilities by $21,5648,655.38 at the close of fiscal
year 2021. The maijority of this is net investment in capital assets. The overall change in net position was
$2,994,163.16.
Key financial Highlights for the 2020-2021 fiscal year include the following:

* The State withheld both of the June fiscal year state aid payments until July 2021.

+ The state aid to the District increased by $322,400.00 for the 2020-2021 fiscal year.

o The District was awarded $377,938.00 in COVID 19 (CARES Act) grants during the 2020-
2021 school year with additional grants to be awarded in future school years.
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BOROUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOOL DISTRICT
MIDDLESEX, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
UNAUDITED
Financial Analysis of the District as a Whole

Recall that the Statement of Net Position provides the perspective of the District as a whole. Table 1
below reflects the District's net position as a whole. Table 2 reflects the changes in net position from

operating results.

Table 1
Condensed Statement of Net Position
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total School District Total
(As Restated {As Restated (As Restated) Percentage
Fy 2021 FY 2020 FY 2029 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2020 Change
Currentand
Ofther Assets $8,955,661.84 $6,179,160.85 $378,143.55 $456,961.85 $9,334,005.39 $6,636,122.70 40.65%
Capital Assets 26,012,910.42 26.961,602.39 267,327 45 28640729 26,280,237 87 27,248,009.68 -3.55%
Total Assels 34,9668,772.26 33,140,763.24 645471.00 74336914 35514.243.26 33,884,132.38 511%
Deferred Outfiows:
Related fo pensions 1,588,852.00 2,282820.00 1,588,852.00 2,282 82000 -30.40%
Long-Term
Liabilities 12,093,084.63 14,328,697.39 12,003,064.83 14,328,697.39 -15.60%
Short-Ferm
Liabilities 1,904, 469.08 1,855,463.02 68,054.17 4352375 187252325 2,004.986.77 -1.62%
Total Liabilifies 13,997 533.71 16,284,160.41 68,054.17 4952375 14,065,587.88 16,333,684.16 -13.89%
Deferred Inflows:
Related to pensions 3,960,150.00 3,650,114.00 3,960,190.00 3,650,114.00 849%
Net Position:
Net invesment
in Capilal Assels 20,663,726.61 20,546 566.25 267.32745 286,407.29 20,931,054.08 20,832973.54 0.47%
Restricted 7594,726.87 550123491 759472687 5,501,234 .91 38.05%
Unrestricled (Defcity (9,658,652.93) {10,558,492 33} 310,089.38 40743810 {9,348,463.55) {10,151,054.23) -191%
Tolal Nel
Posifion $18,599,800.55 $15489,308.83 $571,416.83 $693,845.39 $19,177317.38 $16,183,154.22 18.50%

The largest portion of the District’s net position is its net investment in capital assets. Restricted net
positions include those items that are subject to external restrictions (e.g. for capital projects, capital
and maintenance reserves, unempioyment compensation insurance and excess fund balance in the
general fund as well as student activities and scholarships in the special revenue fund.}.

Unrestricted net position increased from fiscal year 2020 to fiscal year 2021 and is a large deficit due
to the implementation of GASB 68 in fiscal year 2015 and GASB 75 in fiscal year 2018.
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BOROUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOOL DIiSTRICT

MIDDLESEX, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
UNAUDITED

Changes in Net Position from Operating Results

Revenue:

Program Revenue:
Charges for Services
Operating Granis and

Contributions

General Revenue:
Property Taxes
Federal and State Aid
Other

Total Revenue

Expenses;

Instruction

Student & Instructional
Support Services

Adrministralive, Central
and Technology

Maintenance &
Operations

Transportation

Other

Total Expenses

Contributed / Disposal of

Capital Assels
Canceled Receivables
Transfer

Increasef{Decrease} in
Net Position

Governmental Business-Type Total School
Activities Activities District

FY 2021 EY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2020
$67,388.45 $212,478.24 $17,194.92 $759,370.05 $84,583.37 $971,848.28
$13,924,426.85 9,410,225.58 410,856.23 350,690.50 14,335,283.08 9,760,916.08
26,438,313.00 25,948,509.00 26,438,319.00 25,948,909.00
11,107,372.90 10,611,458.38 11,107,372.90 10,611,458.38
149,284 .17 428,146.87 174.86 1,778.36 149,459.03 429,925.23
51,686,791.37 46,611,218.07 428,226.01 1,111,838.91 52,115,017.38 47,723,056.98
33,203,107.68 27,028,119.17 33,203,107.69 27,028,119.17
6,313,352.73 6,687,435.82 6,313,352.73 6,667,435.82
4,452,259.52 5,125,501.34 4,452,259.52 5,125,501.34
2,621,326.94 3,458,576.99 2,621,326.94 3,458,576.99
757,655.02 986,175.18 757,655.02 986,175.18
1,228,497.75 1,207 821,66 544,654.57 1,166,903.78 1,773,152.32 2,374,725 44
48,576,199.65 44,493,630.16 544,654.57 1,166,903.78  45,120,854.22 45,660,533.94
{331.84) {331.84) (663.68)
(94,873.00) (94,873.00)

30,000.00 (30,000.00)

$3,110,501.72 $2,052,383.07 ($116,428.56) {$85,396.71)  $2,994,163.16 $1,966,986.36
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BOROUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOOL DISTRICT
MIDDLESEX, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
UNAUDITED

Sources of Revenue

The District’s total revenue for the 2020-2021 school year was $52,115,017.38 as reflected in Table 3
below. Property taxes accounted for 50.73 percent of the total revenue with the other 49.27 percent
consisting of state and federal aid, grants, charges for services, and miscellaneous sources.

Table 2
Sources of Revenue

FY 2021 FY 2020
Sources of Revenue Amount Percentage Amount Percentage

Property Taxes $26,438,319.00 50.73%  $25,948,809.00 54 .37%
State and Federal Aid 24,087.250.13 46.22% 19,466,091.99 40.79%
Federal and State Grants 1.330,499.68 2.55% 869,188.20 1.82%
Charges for Services 17.194.92 0.03% 759,370.05 1.59%
Other 241,753.65 0.46% 678,597.74 1.43%

$52,115,017.38 100.00%  $47,723,056.98 100.00%

The increase in property taxes of $489,410.00 is a 1.89% increase allowed under current state

regulations.

The increase of $4,620,258.14 in federal and state aid is mainly due to a small increase in the
categorical state aid along with a larger increase in the actuarial postemployment and pension liability

paid by the State on behalf of the District.

The increase in federal and state grants of $461,311.48 is due to federal monies received for the

COVID-19 pandemic.

Charges for services decreased due to the closing of the school because of the pandemic, resulting in
in the cafeteria being closed and community school programs being limited.

The other category decreased due to school being virtual and various revenues not being received.
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BOROUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOOL. DISTRICT
MIDDLESEX, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
UNAUDITED

Expenses for the Fiscal Year 2021 and 2020

The total expenditures for the 2020-2021 fiscal year for all programs and services were
$49,120,854.22. Table 4 below summarizes these program costs. The District's expenses are
predominantly related to instructing, providing services and transporting students, grades kindergarten
through twelve, which accounts for 81.99 percent of the total District costs. Administrative and central
and technology expenses account for the costs of the Office of the Superintendent of Schools, the
Business Office, the Technology Office, and the Principal's Offices in all five school buildings.
Maintenance and operations account for the costs of keeping the school buildings and grounds safe,
clean and in good operating condition, and includes all the utility costs related to the school facilities.
Other costs include interest on long-term debt, unallocated depreciation expense and the costs of the
business-type activities of the proprietary funds. It is important to note that depreciation expense on
capital assets is included in expenses; expenses therefore include $1,309,330.53 for depreciation.

Table 4
Expenses for Fiscal Year 2021 and 2020
FY 2021 FY 2020
Expense Category Amount Percentage Amount Perceniage

Instruction $33,203,107.69 67.59% $27,028,119.17 59.19%
Student and Instruction Services 6,313,352.73 12.85% 6,687,435.82 14.65%
Administrative, Central and Technology 4,452,259.52 9.06% 5,125,501.34 11.23%
Maintenance and Operations 2,621,326.94 5.34% 3,458,576.99 7.57%
Transportation 757,655.02 1.54% 986,175.18 2.16%
Other 1,773,152.32 3.60% 2,374,725.44 5.19%

$49,120,854.22 100.00% $45,660,533.94 100.00%
Table 5
Net Cost

Table 5 presents the net cost (total cost less fees generated by the activities and intergovernmental
aid provided for specific programs) of six major District activities: instruction, student & instructional
services, administration and business, maintenance and operations, transportation, and other. The
net cost shows the financial burden placed on the District’s taxpayers and the state by each of these
functions.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

UNAUDITED
Table 5
Net Cost
FY 2021 FY 2020
Expense Category Amount Percentage Amount Percentage

instruction $21,796,333.75 62.81% $20,313,292.68 58.17%
Student & Instruction Services 4,654,669.12 13.41% 4.888,264.00 14.00%
Administrative, Central and Technology 3,858,933.77 11.12% 4,342,089.29 12.43%
Maintenance & Operations 2,621,326.94 7.55% 3,458,576.99 9.90%
Transportation 424,623.02 1.22% 653,143.18 1.87%
Other 1,345,101.17 3.89% 1,264,664.89 3.63%

$34,700,987.77 100.00% $34,920,041.03 100.00%

General Fund Budgeting Highlights

The District's budget is prepared according to New Jersey Statutes and is based on accounting for
certain transactions on a basis of modified accrual and encumbrance accounting. The most significant
budgeted fund is the general fund. During the fiscal year there were differences between the original
budget and the final amended budget as a result of transfers being applied to certain line items.
These transfers were made between line items as part of the normal process as permitted by State
guidelines. Readers should refer to Section C of the financial report for comparisons between actual
and budgeted amounts.

Described below are explanations for variations in revenues and expenditures for certain lines where
the modified budgeted amounts differ from the original budget by significant amounts.

Expenditures

The actual amounts expended for instruction and student related services increased from the prior
year as federal funds were used for student related instruction. Transportation costs decreased due o
the pandemic and the closing of schools. Tuition to other lea’s saw an increase as more students
were enrolied in other district schools to meet their individual educational needs. Maintenance and
operations decreased due to schools being closed as a result of the pandemic.

Revenues
Excluding the change in the state pension, revenues overall saw an increase from the prior year.
State aids increased slightly and the district received federal covid grants during 2020-2021. Other

miscellaneous revenues and charges for services in the cafeteria and community school decreased
due to the pandemic and schools being closed.
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Capital Assets

During the fiscal year 2020-2021 the District had limited capital acquisitions and construction projects
therefore capital assets net of depreciation decreased. Table 6 reflects the comparative balances of
capital assets net of depreciation. The detail of the changes in capital assets is reflected in Note 3 to
the financial statements.

Table 6
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation)
Total
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total School District Percentage
Fy 2021 FY 2620 FY 2021 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2020 Change
Land and Site
Improvements $847,192.02 $933,402.29 $847,192.02 $933,402.29 -9.24%
Building and
Building
improvements  24,489,163.73 24,325,328.50 24,489,163.73 24,325,329.50 067%
Construction in
Progress 124,489.90 1,103,476.77 124,489.90 1,10347677  100.00%
Machinery and
Equipment 552,064.77 599,393.83 §267,32745  $286,407.29 819,392.22 885,801.12 -7.50%

Total Assets $26,01291042  $26,961,602.39 §267,32745 $286,407.20  $26,280,237.87  $27,248,009.68 -3.55%

Debt Administration

At June 30, 2021 the District had $12,963,843.01 of outstanding long-term liabilities, consisting of
bonds payable, unamortized bond premium, compensated absences, lease purchase agreements
and net pension liability. The District will continue to pay down its debt, as the obiigations are due.
Table 7 reflects the comparison of outstanding liabilities for the past two fiscal years. More information
of the District's long-term liabilities is presented in Note 4 to the financial statements.

Table 7
Outstanding Long-term Liabilities
Total School Debt Total

FY 2021 FY 2020 Percentage Change
Lease Purchase Agreements $4,874,893.43 $5.460,389.36 -10.72%
Compensated Absences 311,878.20 235,312.14 32.54%
Bonds Payable 435,000.00 875,000.00 -50.29%
Net Pension Liability 7,302,781.00 8,580,822.00 -14.89%
Unamortized Bond Premium 39,290.38 79,646.78 -50.67%
$12,963,843.01 $15,231,170.28 -14.89%
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The District’s Future

The District is presently in stable financial position. A major concern for the community is that state aid
has been fiat or minimally increased; therefore, the burden of the rising cost of education is focused
on taxpayers to support their local schools. Despite these concerns, the Borough of Middiesex School
District is committed to maintaining fiscal responsibility as well as achieving educational excellence for
all of the students of the District.

Contacting the District’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide the District’s citizens, taxpayers, customers and investors
and creditors with a general overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s
accountability for the money it receives. If you have guestions about this report or need additional
financial information, contact Beth Brooks, School Business Administrator/Board Secretary at the
Middlesex Borough Board of Education, 300 John F. Kennedy Drive, Middlesex, New Jersey 08846 or
email at broocksb@middlesex.k12.nj.us.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements provide a financial overview of
the District's operations. These financial statements present the financial position and
operating results of all funds as of June 30, 2021.
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DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the District. These statements include the
financial activities of the overall district. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting
of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the District.
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EXHIBIT "A-1"

BOROUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2021

GOVERNMENTAL ~ BUSINESS-TYPE

ACTMITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $1,866,356.15 $288,123.24 $2,154,479.39
Receivables, net 1,411,336.98 74,595.32 1,485,932.31
inventory 15,424.99 15,424.99
Prepaid expenses 265,367.03 265,367.03
Restricted assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 5,412,801.67 5,412,801.67
Capital assets:
Capital assets not being depreciated 168,828.90 168,828.90
Cther capital assets, net 25,844,081 .52 267,327.45 26,111,408.97
Total assets 34,968,772.26 645,471.00 35,614,243.26
DEFERRED CUTFLOWS OF RESCURCES:
Related to pensions 1,588,852.00 1,688,852.00
Totat Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,688,852.00 1,5688,852.00
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 796,813.64 796,513.64
Payroll deductions payable 56,033.76 58,033.76
Urnemployment insurance payable 158,867.70 168,967.70
Unearned revenue 18,150.80 68,054.17 86,204.77
Accrued interest payable 3,625.00 3,625.00
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year 1,029,746.08 1,029,746.08
Due beyond one year:
Net pension liability 7.302,781.00 7.302,781.00
Compensated absences payable 311,878.20 311,878.20
Unamoriized bond premium 39,280.38 30,280.38
Bonds and capital leases payable 4,280,147.35 4,280,147.35
Total liabilities 13,997 533.71 68,054.17 14,065,587.88
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Related to pensions 3,860,180.00 3,960,180.00
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 3,860,190.00 3,980,190.00
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 20,663,726.61 267,327.45 20,931,054.06
Restricted for:
Special Revenue fund 216,101.06 219,101.06
Capital projects fund 4,653,507.23 4,653,507.23
Other purposes 2,722,118.58 2722,118.58
Unrestricted (deficit) (9,658,652.93) 310,089.38 (9,348,463.55)
Total net position $18,598,900.55 $577,416.83 $19,177,317.38

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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MAJOR FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The individual fund financial statements and schedules present more detailed information for the individual
fund in a format that segregates information by fund type.
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EXHIBIT "B-1"

SHEET #1
BOROUGH OF MIDBLESEX SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET
GCOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2021
SPECIAL CAPITAL TOTAL
GENERAL REVENUE PROJECTS GOVERNMENTAL

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS: FUND FUND FUND FLNDS
Assets:

Cash and cash eguivalents

Accounts recelvable:
Federal
Stale
Other
interfund

Prepaid expense

Restricted cash and cash equivalenis:
Capital reserve account
Maintenance reserve account

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:

LiabHities:
Accounts payable
Interfunds payable
Payroll deductions payable
tUnemployment insurance payable
Unearned revenue

Total liabilities

Fund balances;
Restricted for:
Capital reserve account
Maintanance reserve
Excess surplus designated for
subsequent years expenditures
Excess surplus - current year
FFCRA Semi- desginated for
subsequent years expenditures
Linemployment compensation
Scholarships
Student activities
Assigned for year-end encumbrances
Unassigned:
General fund

Total fund balances

Total abilities and fund balances

$1.467,670.85 $219,101.06 $179,584.24 $1,866,356.15
722,678.59 722,678.59

550,616.02 116,934.00 667,550.02
21,078.38 30.00 21,108.38
877,205.59 877,205.59
265,367.03 265,367.03
4,653,507.23 4,853,507.23
759,294 44 759,204 44
$8,504,739.54 $941,800.65 $296,518.24 $9,833,067.43
142,168.00 123,870.64 266,038.64
596,220.83 280,975.76 §77,205.59

56,033.76 56,033.76
158,967.70 158,967.70
2.608.12 15,542.48 18,150.60

357,169.46 722,708.59 296,518.24 1,376,396.29
4,663,507.23 4,653,507.23
759,204.44 759,294 .44
1,040,832.20 1,040,932.20
750,000.00 750,000.00
3,860.12 3,860.12
30,000.00 30,000.00
85,765.03 85,765.03

133,336.03 133,336.03

141,656.82 141,656.82
858,319.27 868,319.27
8.237,670.08 219,101.06 8,456,671.14
$8,594,739.54 $041,809.65 $296,518.24 $9,833,067.43

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



EXHIBIT "B-1"

SHEET #2
BORQUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOO!L DISTRICT
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2021
Total Fund Balances {Brought Forward) $8,456,671.14
Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement
of Net Position (A-1) are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
respurces and therefore are not reported in the funds.
Cost of Assets $47,686,610.95
Accumulated Depreciation {21,673,700.53)
26,012,910.42
Long term liabilities, including bonds payable, and other related
amounts that are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds.
Net pension liability (7,302,781.00)
Serial bonds payable (435,000.00)
Original issue Premium, net (39,290.38)
Capital leases / ESIP payable (4,874,893.43)
Compensated absences payable (311,878.20}
(12,963,843.01)
Deferred Outflows and Inflows of rescurces are applicable
to future periods and therefore are not reported in the funds.
Pensions:
Deferred Outflows
Pension related 1,688,852.060
Deferred Inflows:
Pansion related (3,860,190.00)
Certain liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore, are not reported in the governmentat funds.
Accounts Payable - Pension related {530,875.00)
Accrued Interest Payable (3,625.00)
{534,500.00)
Net Position of Governmental Activities $18,599,900.55

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TATEMEN

REVENUES:

Local sources:
Local tax levy
Tuition - Individual
Miscellaneous- unrestricted
Miscellanecus- restricted

Total revenues-local sources

State sources
Federal sources

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current expense:
Instruction;
Regular
Special education
Other instruction
Support services:
Tuition
Student and instruction related services
General administralive services
Schoof administrative services
Central services
Adminisiration information technology
Plant operations and maintenance
Student ransporlation services
Employee benefits
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures

Other financing sources {uses).
Operating {ransfers in
Operating fransfers out

Total financing sources (uses):

Net change in fund balances

Fund batances, July 1, 2020 (as restated)

Fund balances, June 30, 2021

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

EXHIBIT "B-2"

BO H OF MIDDLESEX SCHOOL DISTRIGT
E REVENUES DITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANGE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNF 30, 2021
SPECIAL CAPITAL DEBT TOTAL
GENERAL REVENUE PROJECTS SERVICE GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUNDS
$26,114,423.00 $323,896.00 $26,438,319.00
20,760.00 20,750.00
88,124.31 $53.48 88,177.77
$101,232.52 101,232.52
26,223,287.31 101,232.52 53.46 323,806.00 28,848,479.29
47,855,232.00 105.414.10 15%,104.00 18,111,750.10
76,200.80 1,321,561.78 1,397 762.58
44,154,730.11 1,422,794.30 105,467.56 475,000.00 48,157,891.97
10,263,162.81 382,633.29 10,645,698.10
3,726,410.44 5§34,935.35 4,261,345.79
+,275,885.65 1,275,885.65
965,432.59 955,432.59
4,061,247.34 477,859.27 4,538,906.61
1,042,056.36 1,042,056.36
1,830,899.13 1,830,899.13
465,673.86 465,973.88
142,643.35 142,643.35
2,719,253.62 2,719,253 62
750,381.86 750,381.86
13,510,240.88 13,510,240.88
420,564.85 36,883.86 261,512.71 710,961.42
440,000.00 440,000.00
35,000.00 35,000.00
41,164,152.74 1,434,011,77 251,512.71 475,000.00 43,324677.22
2,990,577.37 {11.217.47) {148,045.15) 2,833,314.75
525,237.09 150,000.00 675,237.09
(150,000,00) (525,237.00) (675,237.00)
375,237.09 (375,237.09)
3,365,814.48 {11,217.47) (521,282.24) 2,833,314.75
4,871,755.82 230,318.53 521,282.24 5,623,356.39
$8,237,570.08 $210,101.06 $-0- $-0- $8,456,671.14
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BORQUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOOI. DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES |N FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds (from B-2)}

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of aclivities {A-2) are different because:

Capital oullays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful
lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation exceeded
capital outtays in the period.

Depreciation expense ($1,284,110.69)
Capital outlays 710,961.42
Capital outlays not capilalized (375,542.70)

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but repayment reduces
long-term Habilities in the statement of net assets and is not reported in the statements of activities.

Paid - Principal on bonds

Proceeds from debt issues are a financing source in the governmental funds. They are not revenue
in the statement of activilies; issuing debt increases fong-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.

Original issue premium on refunding bonds {net)

Repayment of long-term debt is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets and is not reported in the statement of activities.

Paid - Principal on lease purchase

in the statement of activities, interest on long-term debt is accrued, regardiess of when due.
in governmental funds, interest is reported when due. The accrued interest is an addition in the
reconciliation.

District pension contributions are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds when made.
However, they are reported as deferred outflows of resources in the Statement of Net Position because
the reported net pension liability is measured a year before the District's report date. Pension expense,
which is the change in the net pension liability adjusted for changes in deferred outflows and inflows of
resources related to pensions, is reported in the Statement of Acltivities.

District pension contributions 489,893.00

Less: Pension expense {256,877.00}

in the statement of activities, certain expenses, e.g., compensaled absences (vacations) are
measured by the amounts earned during the year. In governmental funds, however, expenditures
for these items are reporied in the amount of financial resources used (paid). When the earned
amount exceeds the paid amount, the difference is a reduction in the reconciliation (-); when the
paid amount exceeds the earmned amount the difference is an addition fo the reconciliation (+).

Change in net position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT "B-3"

$2,833.314.75

{948,691.97)

440,000.00

40,356.40

585,495.93

3,666.67

233,016.60

(76,566.06)

$3,110,581.72



OTHER FUNDS
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ASSETS:

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivaients
Accounts receivable;
State
Federal

Other
Inventories
Total current assets

Noencurrent assets
Furniture, machinery & equipment
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES:

Current liahilities:
Unearned revenue

Total current liabilities
NET POSITION:

Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

BOROQUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOOL DISTRICT

PROPRIETARY FUND

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

AS OF JUNE 30, 2021

EXHIBIT "B-4"

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUND

FOOD COMMUNITY

SERVICE SCHOOL TOTAL
$236,049.43 $52,073.81 $288,123.24
2,468.17 2,468.17
71,186.13 71,156.13
971.02 671.02
15,424.99 15,424.99
326,069.74 52,073.81 378,143.55
653,957.20 653,957.29
(386,629.84) (386,629.84)
267,327.45 267,327.45
593,397.19 52,073.81 645,471.00
36,666.67 31,387.50 68,054.17
36,666.67 31,387.50 68,054.17
267,327.45 267,327.45
289,403.07 20,686.31 310,089.38
$556,730.52 $20,686.31 $577,416.83
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EXHIBIT "B-5"

BOROUGH OF MIDRLESEX SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNFE 30, 2021

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUND

FOOD COMMUNITY
SERVICE SCHOOL TOTAL
OPERATING REVENUES:
Local sources;
Daily sales- other 67.42 67.42
Program fees $17,127.50 17,127.50
Total operating revenue 657.42 17,127.50 17,194.92
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries 100,273.71 126,884.35 227,158.06
Employee benefits and taxes 27.918.67 37.206.68 65,125.35
Other purchased services 99.60 $9.00
Management fee 25,500.00 25,500.00
Supplies and materials 934.10 81.00 1,015.10
Repairs and other 31,371.39 35.00 31,406.39
Depreciation 25,219.84 25,219.84
Cost of food sales - reimbursable programs 169,130.83 169,130.83
Total operating expenses 380,348.54 164,306.03 544,654 .57
Operating income (loss) (380,281.12) (147,178.53) {527,459.65)
Nonoperating revenues:
State sources:
State schoot lunch program 10,653.39 10,653.39
Federal sources:
National school lunch program 202,857 12 202,857.12
National school breakfast program 121,174 .43 121,174.43
National food distribution commodities 32,981.26 3298126
Emergency operational cost reimbursement 42,576.03 42 576.03
P-EBT administrative cost reimbursement 614.00 614.00
interest earned 174.86 174.86
Totat nonoperating revenues 410,856.23 174.86 411,031.09
Net income {loss) 30,575.11 (147,003.67) (116,428.56)
Net pasition - July 1 526,155.41 167,689.98 693,845.39
Net position - June 30 $656,730.52 $20,686.31 $577,416.83

The accompanying netes to the financial statements are an integral pari of this statement.
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EXHIBIT "B-§"

BOROUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOOL BISTRICT
PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUND

FOOD COMMUNITY
SERVICE SCHOOL TOTAL
Cash flows from operating activities:

Receipis from customers $901.52 $53,990.00 $54.891.52

Payments to employees (100,273.71) {126,884.35) (227,158.06)

Payments for employee benefits (27,918.67) {37,206.68) {65,125.35)

Payments to suppliers (241,962.78) {215.00) {242,177.78)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (369,253.64) {110,316.03) {479,569.67)
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

State sources 10,580.76 10,580.76

Federal sources 337,543.99 337,543.98
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities 348,124.75 348,124.75
Cash flows from investing activities:

Interest earned 174.86 174.88
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities 174.86 174.86
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Purchases of capital assets (6,140.00) {6,140.00)
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing

activities {6,140.00} {6,140.00)
Net increase(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {27,268.89) (110,141.17) {137,410.06)
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1 263,318.32 162,214.98 425,533.30
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30 $236,049.43 $52,073.81 $288,123.24
Operating income(toss) ($380,281.12) ($147,178.53) ($527,459.65)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income {loss})

to cash provided (used) by operating aclivities:
Depreciation and net amortization 25,219.84 25,219.84
Transfer out

Change in assets and liabilities:

increase {Decrease) in unearned revenue 5,924.98 31,387.50 37,312.48

{Increase) Decrease in inventory (1,287.53) (1,287.53)

{increase) Decrease in prepaid expense

{increase) Decrease in accounts receivabie (47.75) 5,475.00 5427.25

Increase {Decrease) in accounts payable {18,782.06) {18,782.06)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities {$369,253.64) {$110,316.03) ($479,569.67)

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this stalement,
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NOTE 1:

Borough of Middlesex School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Borough of Middlesex School District have been
prepared in conformity with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant
of the Board's accounting policies are described below.

Reporting Entity

The Borough of Middlesex School District is a Type H District located in
Middlesex County, New Jersey. The School District is an instrumentality of the
State of New Jersey, established to function as an educational institution. The
District is governed by a nine member board elected to three-year terms and is
responsible for the fiscal control of the District. A Superintendent is appointed by
the Board and is responsible for the administrative control of the District.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity,
are set forth in Statement No. 39 of the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board entitled “Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component
Units” (GASB 39) as codified in Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards.

Organizations that are legally separate, tax-exempt entities and that meet alf of
the following criteria should be discretely presented as component units. These
criteria are:

1. The economic resources received or heid by the separate organization
are entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the primary
govemnment.

2. The primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the
ability to otherwise access, a majority of the economic resources of the
organization.

3. The economic resources received or held by an individual organization
that the specific primary government, or its component units, is entitied to,
or has the ability to otherwise access, are significant to that primary
government.

The combined financial statements include all funds of the District over which the
Board exercises operating control. The operations of the District include three
elementary schools, a middle and a high school located in the Borough of
Middlesex. There were no additional entities required to be included in the
reporting entity under the criteria as described above, in the current fiscal year.
Furthermore, the District is not includable in any other reporting entity on the
basis of such criteria.
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NOTE 1:

Borough of Middlesex School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of Presentation

The District's basic financial statements consist of District-wide statements,
including a statement of net assets and a statement of activities, and fund financial
statements which provide a more detailed level of financial information.

District-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of
activities display information about the District as a whole. These statements
include the financial activities of the overall District. Eliminations have been made
to minimize the double-counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish
generally between the governmental and business-type activity of the District.
Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental
revenues, and other nonexchange transactions. Business-type activities are
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of net position presents the financial condition of the governmental
and business-type activity of the District at fiscal year end. The statement of
activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues
for the business-type activity of the District and for each function of the District's
governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated
with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular
function. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of
goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that
are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirement of a particular
program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all
taxes, are presented as general revenues. The comparison of direct expenses
with program revenues identifies the extent to which each governmental function
or business segment is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the
District.

Fund Financial Statements: During the fiscal year, the District segregates
transactions related to certain District functions or activities in separate funds in
order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. The fund
financial statements provide information about the District's funds. Separate
statements for each fund category — governmental and proprietary - are presented.
The New Jersey Department of Education (NJDOE) has elected to require New
Jersey districts to treat each governmental fund as a major fund in accordance
with the option noted in GASB No. 34, paragraph 76. The NJDOE believes that
the presentation of all funds as major is important for public interest and to promote
consistency among district financial reporting models.
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NOTE 1:

Borough of Middlesex School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Governmental Fund Types

General Fund - The general fund is the general operating fund of the
District. 1t is used to account for all financial resources except those
required to be accounted for in another fund. Included are certain
expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or noninstructional
equipment which are classified in the capital outlay subfund.

As required by the New Jersey State Department of Education, the
District includes budgeted capital outlay in this fund. Generally accepted
accounting principles as they pertain to governmental entities state that
general fund resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays for
long-lived improvements as long as the resources in such cases are
derived exclusively from unrestricted revenues. Resources for budgeted
capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New Jersey
Aid, district taxes and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those
that result in the acquisition of or additions to fixed assets for land,
existing buildings, improvements of grounds, construction of buildings,
additions to or remodeling of buildings and the purchase of built-in
equipment. These resources can be transferred from and to current
expense by board resolution.

Special Revenue Fund - The Special Revenue Fund is used to account
for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted
or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt
service or capital projects. Thus, the Special Revenue Fund is used to
account for the proceeds of specific revenue from State and Federal
Governments (other than major capital projects, debt service or the
enterprise funds) and local appropriations that are legally restricted or
committed to expenditures for specified purposes.

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for
and report financial resources that are restricted, committed or assigned
to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction
of capital facilities and other capital assets (other than those financed by
proprietary funds). The financial resources are derived from temporary
notes or serial bonds that are specifically authorized by the voters as a
separate question on the ballot either during the annual election or at a
special election, funds appropriated from the General Fund, and from aid
provided by the state to offset the cost of approved capital projects.

Debt Service Fund - The debt service fund is used to account for and
report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to
expenditure for principal and interest.
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NOTE 1:

Borough of Middlesex School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Recentiy Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

Beginning with the year ended June 30, 2021, the District has implemented GASB
Statement 84, Fiduciary Activities. The objective of this new Statement is to
improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting
and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. This
Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local
governments. The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is
controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom
a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included to identify fiduciary
component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary
activities.

An activity meeting the criteria should be reported in a fiduciary fund in the basic
financial statements. Governments with activities meeting the criteria should
present a statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in
fiduciary net position. An exception to that requirement is provided for a business-
type activity that normally expects to hold custodial assets for three months or less.

As a result of the implementation of this Statement, the New Jersey Department
of Education has made the following determinations as to the reporting of certain
funds which, in prior years, have been reported as Fiduciary Activities:
Prior to
implementation of After Implementation of
Activity GASB 84 GASB 84

Student Activity Funds Fiduciary Fund Special Revenue Fund
Scholarship Funds Fiduciary Fund Special Revenue Fund
Payroll Agency Funds Fiduciary Fund General Fund
State Unemployment Compensation Fund Fiduciary Fund General Fund

See Note 19 for information of the restatement of balance resuiting in the
implementation of this new standard.
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NOTE 1:

Borough of Middlesex School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

Proprietary Fund

Enterprise Fund - The enterprise fund accounts for all revenues and
expenses pertaining to cafeteria operations. The food service fund is
utilized to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises. The stated intent is that
the cost (i.e. expenses including depreciation and indirect costs) of
providing goods or services to the students on a continuing basis are
financed or recovered primarily through user charges. The district also
considers the operations of the Community School as an enterprise
fund.

Basis of Accounting — Measurement Focus

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial
records and reported on the financial statements.

District-Wide and Proprietary Financial Statements: The District-Wide financial
statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Governmental
funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Differences in the accrual and
modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of revenue, the
recording of unearned revenue, and in the presentation of expenses versus
expenditures. Ad Val Orem (Property) Taxes are susceptible to accrual as under
New Jersey State Statute a municipality is required to remit to its school district the
entire balance of taxes in the amount voted upon or certified, prior to the end of
the school year. The District records the entire approved tax levy as revenue
(accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the revenue is both measurable and
available. The District is entitied to receive monies under the established payment
schedule and the unpaid amount is considered to be an “accounts receivable”.
Revenue from grants, entittements, and donations are recognized in the fiscal year
in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental funds are reported using
the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis
of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and
available. “Measurable” means the amount of the transactions can be determined
and ‘“available” means collectible within the current period or soon encugh
thereafter to be used to pay labilities of the current period. Expenditures are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest
on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences,
which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General
capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are
reported as other financing sources.
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NOTE 1:

Borough of Middlesex School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Budgets/Budgetary Control

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the
general, special revenue, and debt service funds. The budgets are submitted to
the county office for approval. In accordance with P.L. 2011, ¢. 202, which
became effective January 17, 2012, the District elected to move the April school
Board election to the date of the November general election thereby eliminating
the vote on the annual base budget. Budgets are prepared using the modified
accrual basis of accounting. The legal level of budgetary control is established at
line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the
lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum
chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C. 6A:23. All budget amendments and
transfers must be approved by School Board resolution. The over-expenditures
related to on-behalf payments in the general fund are due to the inclusion of the
non-budgeted on-behalf payments made by the State of New Jersey as District
expenditures. These amounts are offset by related revenues and as such do not
represent budgetary over-expenditures.

All budget amounts presented in the accompanying supplementary information
reflect the original budget and the amended budget (which have been adjusted
for legally authorized revisions of the annual budgets during the year).

Appropriations, except remaining project appropriations, encumbrances, and
unexpended grant appropriations, lapse at the end of each fiscal year. The
capital projects fund presents the remaining project appropriations compared to
current year expenditures. Formal budgetary integration into the accounting
system is employed as a management control device during the year. For
governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary
basis of accounting and generally accepted accounting principles with the
exception of the legally mandated recognition of the last state aid payment for
budgetary purposes only and the special revenue fund as noted below.
Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary
integration in the governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse
at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant
accounting budgetary basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from
GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as
expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis
does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the
presentation of GAAP basis financial records.
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Borough of Nliddlesex School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Encumbrance Accounting

Under encumbrance accounting, purchase orders, contracts and other
commitments for the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of
the applicable appropriation. Open encumbrances in governmental funds other
than the special revenue fund are reported as assigned or committed fund
balances at fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but
rather commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund for which the District has received
advances are reflected in the balance sheet as unearned revenues at fiscal year
end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An
entry will be made at the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the
appropriation reflected in the certified budget by the outstanding encumbrance
amount as of the current fiscal year end.

Interfunds

interfund receivables and payables arise from transactions between particular
funds and are considered short term in duration. The interfund transactions are
recorded by all funds affected in the period in which the transactions are executed
and are part of the district’s available spendable resources.

Inventories and Prepaid Expenses

Inventories of materials and supplies held for consumption in the governmental
funds are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase and year end balances
are not reported in the financial statements.

Inventories of food and/or supplies in the food service fund are recorded at cost on
a first-in, first-out basis or, in the case of Food Distribution Commodities, at stated
value which approximates market.

Prepaid expenses which benefit future period, other than those recorded in the
enterprise fund, are recorded as an expenditure in the year of purchase.
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Borough of Middlesex School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital Assets

The District has an established formal system of accounting for its capital assets.
Capital Assets used for governmental purposes, which include land, buildings
and improvements and furniture and equipment, are only reported in the district-
wide financial statements. The District generally defines capital assets as assets
with an initial cost of $2,000.00 or more and an estimated useful life in excess of
one year. Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost.
Donated capital assets are valued at their acquisition value on the date received.
The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the
asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated in the district-wide statements using the straight-
line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated
Asset Class Useful Lives
School Buildings 50
Building iImprovements 20
Electrical/Plumbing 30
Vehicles 8
Office & Computer Equipment 5-10
Instructional Equipment 10
Grounds Equipment 15

Compensated Absences

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick
leave) as directed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No.
16 (GASB 18), “Accounting for Compensated Absences.” A liability for
compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and not
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and
employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Compensated Absences (Continued)

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in
accordance with the District’s personnel policy. Upon termination, employees
are paid for accrued vacation. The District's policy permits employees to
accumulate unused sick leave and carry forward the full amount to subsequent
years. Upon retirement, employees shall be paid by the District for the unused
sick leave in accordance with the District's agreements with the various
employee unions and contracts.

The liability for compensated absences was accrued using the termination
payment method, whereby the liability is calculated based on the amount of sick
leave that is expected to become eligible for payment upon termination. The
District estimates its accrued compensated absences liability based on the
accumulated sick and vacation days at the balance sheet date by those
employees who are currently eligible to receive termination payments.

For the District-wide statements, the current portion is the amount estimated to
be used in the following year. In accordance with GAAP, for the governmental
funds, in the fund financial statements, all of the compensated absences are
considered long-term and therefore, are not a fund liability and represents a
reconciling item between the fund level and District-wide presentations.

Fund Balance and Net Position

Fund balance restrictions are used to indicate that portion of the fund balance
that is not available for expenditures or is legally segregated for a specific future
use. Designation of portions of the fund balances are established to indicate
tentative plans for financial utilization in a future period. The unassigned fund
balances represent the amount available for future budgetary operations.

Unassigned net position represents the remains of the District's equity in the
cumulative earnings of the proprietary fund.

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue in the general and special revenue funds represents funds
which have been received but not yet earned. A corresponding accounis
receivable has also been established for any open encumbrances at year end
which is allowable under generally accepted accounting principles.
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Borough of Middlesex School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported on the
District-wide financial statements. In general, governmental fund payables and
accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in full from
current financial resources, are reported as obligations of the funds. However,
contractually required pension contributions and compensated absences that are
paid from governmental funds are reported as liabilities on the fund financial
statements only to the extent that they are due for payment during the current
year. Bonds are recognized as a liability on the fund financial statements when
due.

Net Position

GASB 63 provides guidance for reporting net position in the statement of
financial position and related disclosures. Net Position represents the difference
between assets and liabilities. Net investment in capital assets consists of
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balance of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement
of those assets. Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations
imposed on their use either through the enabling legisiation adopted by the
District or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or
regulations of other governments. The District’s policy is to first apply restricted
resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted
and unrestricted net positions are available.

Fund Balance

Under GASB 54, in the fund financial statements, governmental funds report the
following classifications of fund balance:

Nonspendable ~ includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either
not spendable in form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact.

Restricted - includes amounts restricted by external sources (creditors, laws of
other governments, etc.) or by constitutional provision or enabling legislation. The
District reports the Capital Reserve, Maintenance Reserve, Unemployment
Compensation, Scholarship, Student Activities and Excess Surplus as Restricted
Fund Balance.

46



NOTE 1:

Borough of Middlesex School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fund Balance (Continued)

Committed - includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes.
Committed fund balance is reported pursuant to resolutions passed by the Board
of Education, the District’s highest level of decision making authority.
Commitments may be modified or rescinded only through resolutions approved
by the Board of Education. The District reports amounts Designated for
Subsequent Year's Expenditures and Capital Fund Encumbrances as Committed
Fund Balance.

Assigned - includes amounts that the District intends to use for a specific
purpose, but do not meet the definition of restricted or committed fund balance.
Under the District's policy, amounts may be assigned by the Business
Administrator. The District reports Year End Encumbrances as Assigned Fund
Balance.

Unassigned -is the residual classification for the general fund. This classification
represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has
not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the
general fund. The general fund should be the only fund that reports a positive
unassigned fund balance amount. In other governmental funds, if expenditures
incurred for specific purposes exceeded the amounts restricted, committed, or
assigned to those purposes.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted fund balance is available, the District considers restricted funds to
have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which committed,
assigned, or unassigned fund balance are available, the District considers
amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds,
and finally unassigned funds, as needed.

Revenues - Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange {ransactions, in which each party gives and
receives essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the
exchange takes place. On the modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the
fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available.
Available means the resources will be coliected within the current fiscal year or
are expected to be collected sgon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities
of the current fiscal year. For the District, available means within sixty days of
the fiscat year end.

47



NOTE 1:

Borough of Middlesex School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenues — Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions {(Continued)

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly
giving equal value in return, include property taxes, income taxes, grants,
entitiements, and donations. On the accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from income
taxes is recognized in the period in which the income is earned. Revenue from
grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all
eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing
requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to be used
or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the
District must provide local resources to be used for a specific purpose; and
expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the Districton a
reimbursement basis. On the modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange
transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered
both measurable and available at fiscal year-end: property taxes available as an
advance, interest, and tuition.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the
primary activity of the enterprise fund. For the District, these revenues are sales
in the Enterprise Funds. Operating expenses are necessary cosis incurred to
provide the service that is the primary activity of the enterprise fund.

Aliocation of Indirect Expenses

The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities.
Direct expenses are those that are ciearly identifiable with a function. Indirect
expenses are allocated to functions but are reported separately in the Statement
of Activities. Employee benefits, inciuding the employer’s share of social security,
workers compensation, and medical and dental benefits, were allocated based on
salaries of the program. Depreciation expense, where practicable, is specifically
identified by function and is included in the indirect expense column of the
Statement of Activities. Depreciation expense that couid not be attributed to a
specific function is considered an indirect expense and is reported separately on
the Statement of Activities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Extraordinary and Special Items

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are unusual in nature and
infrequent of occurrence. Special items are transactions or events that are within
control of management and are either unusual in nature or infrequent in
occurrence. Neither of these types of transactions occurred during the fiscal
year.

Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make assumptions that affect the amounts reported as revenue
and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions

In the district-wide financial statements for purposes of measuring the net
pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the District’s proportionate share of the New Jersey Public Employees
Retirement System ("PERS”) and the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund
(“TPAF"} and the additions to/deductions from these retirement systems'’
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they were
reported by PERS and TPAF. For this purpose, benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

In the governmental fund financial statements the year end net pension Hability is
not required to be reflected. Pension related revenues and expenditures are
reflected based on amounts that are normally expected to be liquidated with
available financial resources for required pension contributions. Expenditures for
PERS are recognized based upon billings made by the State of New Jersey due
April 1%t of each fiscal year. TPAF contributions are paid on the District's behalf
by the State of New Jersey. The governmental fund financial statements reflect
both a revenue and expense for this pension contribution.

49



NOTE 1:

NOTE 2:

Borough of Middlesex School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deferred Qutflows/inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. Currently, the District has
only one item that qualifies for reporting in this category, deferred amounts
related to pensions.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District has only one item that
qualifies in this category, deferred amounts related to pensions.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

The Board considers petty cash, change funds, cash in banks, deposits in the
government money market account, and short-term investments with original
maturities of three months or less as cash and cash equivalents. Investments
are stated at cost, which approximates market.

Deposits

New Jersey statutes permit the deposit of public funds in public depositories
which are located in New Jersey and which meet the requirements of the
Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). GUDPA requires a bank
that accepts public funds to be a public depository. A public depository is defined
as a state bank, a national bank, or a savings bank, which is located in the State
of New Jersey, the deposits of which are insured by the Federal Deposit
fnsurance Corporation. The statutes also require public depositories to maintain
collateral for deposits of public funds that exceed certain insurance limits. All
collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank or a Banking
institution that is a member of the Federal Reserve System, and has capital
funds of not less than $25,000,000.00. Under (GUDPA), if a public depository
fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public
depositories, is available to pay the full amount of the deposits to the
governmental unit.
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NOTE 2: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Deposits (Continued)

The Borough of Middlesex School District had the following cash and cash
equivalents at June 30, 2021.

Cash in Reconciled
Bank Additions Reductions Balance
Governmental Funds $8,432,776.95 $1,000.00 $1,154,619.13 $7.279,157.82
Proprietary Fund 367,547.47 120.00 79,544 .23 288,123.24

$8,800,324.42 $1,120.00 $1,234,163.36 $7,567,281.06

Custodial Credit Risk —~ Deposits — Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the
event of a bank failure, the deposits may not be returned. The District does not
have a specific deposit policy for custodial credit risk other than those policies
that adhere to the requirements of statute. As of June 30, 2021, based upon the
coverage provided by FDIC and NJ GUDPA, no amount of the bank balance was
exposed to custodial credit risk. Of the cash on balance in the bank,
$299,139.90 was covered by Federal Depository Insurance and $8,501,184.52
was covered under the provisions of NJ GUDPA.

Investments

The purchase of investments by the Board is strictly limited by the express
authority of the N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37 Education, Administration of School Districts.
Permitted investments include any of the following type of securities:

1. Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations
guaranteed by the United States of America;

2. Government money market mutual funds which are purchased from an
investment company or investment trust which is registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission under the “Investment Company
Act of 1940,” 15 U.S.C. 80a-1 et seq., and operated in accordance with
17 C.F.R. § 270.2a-7 and which portfolio is limited to U.S. Government
securities that meet the definition of an eligible security pursuant to 17
C.F.R. § 270.2a-7 and repurchase agreements that are collateralized by
such U.S. Government securities in which direct investment may be made
pursuant to paragraphs (1) and (3) of N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37. These funds
are also required to be rated by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization.

3. Any obligation that a federal agency or a federal instrumentality has
issued in accordance with an act of Congress, which security has a
maturity date not greater than 397 days from the date of purchase,
provided that such obligation bears a fixed rate of interest not dependent
on any index or other external factor.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Investments {Continued)

4.

Bonds or other obligations of the Local Unit or bonds or other obligations
of school districts of which the Local Unit is a part or within which the
school district is located.

Bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date not more than 397
days from date of purchase, approved by the Division of Investment of the
Department of Treasury for investment by School Districts.

Local government investment pools that are fully invested in U.S.
Government securities that meet the definition of eligible security
pursuant to 17 C.F.R. § 270a-7 and repurchase agreements that are
collateralized by such U.S. Government securities in which direct
investment may be made pursuant to paragraphs (1) and (3) of N.J.S.A.
18A:20-37. This type of investment is also required to be rated in the
highest category by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.

Deposits with the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund
established pursuant to section 1 of P.L. 1977, ¢.281 (C. 52:18A-80.4); or

Agreements for the repurchase of fully collateralized securities if:

a. the underlying securities are permitted investments pursuant to
paragraphs (1) and (3) of this subsection;

b. the custody of collateral is transferred to a third party;
c. the maturity of the agreement is not more than 30 days;

d. the underlying securities are purchased through a public depository as
defined in section 1 of P.L. 1970, ¢.236 (C. 17:19-41); and;

e. a master repurchase agreement providing for the custody and security
of collateral is executed.

As of June 30, 2021, the District has no investments outstanding. Based upon
the limitations set forth by New Jersey Statutes 40A:5-156.1 and existing
investment practices of the Investment Council of the N.J. Cash Management
Fund, the District is generally not exposed to credit risks, custodial credit risks,
concentration of credit risks and interest rate risks for its investments nor is it
exposed to foreign currency risk for its deposits and investments.
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NOTE 3:

June 30, 2021

CHANGE IN CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2021 was as follows:

Governmental activities:
Capital assets that are not depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets that are not
depreciated

Capital assels being depreciated:
Site improvements
Building and building improvements
Machinery and equipment
Tolal capital assets being depreciated

Total gross assets
Less: accumulated depreciation for:

Site improvements

Building and building improvements

Machinery and equipment
Governmental activities capital assets, net
Business type activities:

Machinery and equipment

L ess: accumulated depreciation

Business type activities capital assets, net

Beginning Additions/ Ending

Balance Transfers Retirements Balance
$44,339.00 $44,339.00
1,103,476.77 $274611.09  ($1,253,597.96) 124,489.90
1,147 815.77 274,611.09 {1,253,597.96) 168,828 .90
2,617,434.37 2.617,434.37
41,014,674.84 8,800.00 1,253,597.96 42 277,072.80
2,571,267.25 52,007.63 2,623,274.88
46,203,376.46 60,807.63 1,253,697.96 47 517,782.05
47,351,192.23 335,418.72 47,686,610.95
(1,728,371.08) (86,210.27) (1,814,581.35)
{16,689,345.34) {1,098,563.73) {17,787,909.07)
{1,971,873.42) (99,336.69) (2,071,210.11)
{20,389,589.84) (1,284,110.69) (21,673,700.53)

$26,961,602.39

($948,691.97)

$26,012,910.42

647,817.29 8,140.00 653,957.29
(361,410.00) (25,219.84) (386,629.84)
$286,407.29 ($19,079.84) $267,327.45

Depreciation Expense was charged to governmental expenses as follows:

instruction:
Regular
Support Services:

Plant operations and maintenance

Student transportation

Direct Expense of various functions
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Borouah of Middlesex School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

NOTE 4: LONG-TERM DEBT

Bonds are issued by the District pursuant to the provisions of Title 18A, Education,
of the New Jersey Statutes and are required to be approved by the voters of the
municipality through referendum. The proceeds of bonds are recorded in the
Capital Projects Fund and are restricted fo the use for which they were approved
in the bond referendum. All bonds are retired in annual installments within the
statutory period of usefuiness.

School Bonds issued by the District are entitled to and benefit from the provision
of the New Jersey School Board Reserve Act P.L. 1880 ¢.72. Basically, funds are
held by the State of New Jersey within its State Fund for the Support of Free Public
Schools as a school bond reserve pledged by law to secure payment of principal
and interest due on such bonds in the event of the inability of the issuer to make
payments.

At June 30, 2021, the District had no bonds or notes authorized but not issued.

The following is a summary of changes in liabilities that effect other long-term
obligations for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Balance Balance Amounis due
June 30, June 30, Within
2020 Additions Reductions 2021 one year
Bonds Payable $875,000.00 $440,000.00 $435,000.00 $435,000.00
Unamortized Bond Premium 79,646.78 40,356.40 39,290.38
Compensated Absences 23531214 $76,566.06 311,878.20
Capital Leases Payable 5,460,389.36 £85,495.93 4,874,893.43 504,746.08
Net Pension Liability 8,580,822.00 1,278,041.00 7,302,781.00
$15,231,170.28 $76,566.06 $2,343,893.33 $12,963,843.01 $1,020,746.08

Bonds Payable

The annual requirements to amortize all debt outstanding as of June 30, 2021, with
interest payments on issued debt, are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30 Pringipal Interest Total
2022 $435,000.00 $17,400.00 $452,400.00
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NOTE 4: LONG-TERM DEBT

Under New Jersey Statutes the District may incur debt in an amount not to exceed
4% of the averaged equalized valuation basis of real property. For the calendar
year ended December 31, 2020, the District borrowing capacity under N.J.S.
18A:24-19 would be as follows:

Equalized Valuation

Year of Real Property
2020 $1,710,782,109.00
2019 1,540,230,841.00
2018 1,555,760,227.00
Average equalized valuation of property $1,602,257,725.67

School borrowing margin

(4% of $1,802,257,725.67) 64,090,309.03
Net bonded school debt as of December 31, 2020 875,000.00
School borrowing power available $63,215,309.03

NOTES5:  LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT

The District has entered into an agreement to purchase a school bus through a
Lease Purchase Agreement at a fixed interest rate of 2.970%. The following is the
annual payment schedule summarizing amounts due each year for principal and

interest.
Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2022 $20,409.77 $1,873.06 $22,282.83
2023 21,015.985 1,266.88 22,282.83
2024 21,640.11 642 72 22,282.83

$63,065.83 $3,782.66 $66,848.49
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NOTE &: LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT (CONTINUED)

The District has entered into an agreement for an Energy Savings Improvement
Program through a Lease Purchase Agreement at a fixed interest rate of 2.597%.
The following is the annual payment schedule summarizing amounts due each
year for principal and interest.

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total

2022 $201,898.87 $104,025.47 $305,924.34
2023 214,161.44 98,702.54 312,863.98
2024 226,899.74 93,058.07 319,957.81
2025 240,129.67 87,079.59 327,209.26
2026 250,269.63 80,777.59 331,047.22
2027 260,840.43 74,209.45 335,049.88
2028 275,454.99 67,340.55 342,795.54
2029 290,624.82 60,088.48 350,713.30
2030 306,368.27 52,438.75 358,807.02
2031 322,704.28 44 376.30 367,080.58
2032 339,652.37 35,885.63 375,538.00
2033 357,232.65 26,950.73 384,183.38
2034 375,465.86 17,555.01 393,020.87
2035 394,373.36 7,681.41 402,064.77

$4,056,076.38 $850,169.57 $4,906,245.95

The District has entered into an agreement in the amount of $1,360,000.00 for
security cameras and a HVAC project through a Lease Purchase Agreement at a
fixed interest rate of 2.89930%. The following is the annual payment schedule
summarizing amounts due each year for principal and interest:

Year Ending

June 30 Principal interest Total
2022 $372,437.44 $19,231.40 $391,668.84
2023 383,313.78 8,355.07 391,668.85

§$755,751.22 $27,586.47 $783,337.69




NOTE 6:

Borough of Middiesex School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

PENSION PLANS

Description _of Plans - All required employees of the District are covered by
either the Public Employees’ Retirement System or the Teachers’ Pension and
Annuity Fund which have been established by state statute and are administered
by the New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits (Division). According to the
State of New Jersey Administrative Code, ali obligations of both Systems will be
assumed by the State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate. The
Division issues a publicly available financial report that includes the financial
statements and required supplementary information for the Public Empioyees
Retirement System and the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund. These reports
may be obtained by writing to the Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box
295, Trenton, New Jersey, 08625.

Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) - The Teachers’ Pension and
Annuity Fund was established as of January 1, 1955, under the provisions of
N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to provide retirement benefits, death, disability and medical
benefits to certain qualified members. The Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund
is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan with a special funding
situation, as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the
State of New Jersey on behalf of the District and the system'’s other related non-
contributing employers. Membership is mandatory for substantially all teachers
or members of the professional staff certified by the State Board of Examiners,
and employees of the Department of Education who have fitles that are
unclassified, professional and certified.

Public _Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) - The Public Employees’
Retirement System (PERS) was established as of January 1, 1955 under the
provision of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide retirement, death, disability and medical
benefits to certain qualified members. The Public Employees’ Retirement
System is a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. Membership is mandatory for
substantially all full-time employees of the State of New Jersey or any county,
municipality, school district, or public agency, provided the employee is not
required to be a member of another state-administered retirement system or
other state or local jurisdiction.

Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP} - The Defined Contribution
Retirement Program (DCRP) was established under the provision of Chapter 92,
P.L. 2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007 to provide coverage to elected and certain
appointed officials, effective July 1, 2007. Membership is mandatory for such
individuals with vesting occurring after one year of membership.

Significant Legislation

Effective June 28, 2011, P.L. 2011, ¢. 78 enacted certain changes in the
operations and benefit provisions of the TPAF and the PERS systems.
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Pension Plan Design Changes

Effective June 28, 2011, P.L. 2011, ¢. 78, new members of TPAF and PERS, hired
on or after June 28, 2011, will need 30 years of creditable service and have
attained the age of 65 for receipt of the early retirement benefit without a reduction
of 1/4 of 1% for each month that the member is under age 65. New members will
be eligible for a service retirement benefit at age 65.

Funding Changes

Under the new legisiation, the methodology for calculating the unfunded accrued
liability payment portion of the employer's annual pension contribution to the
PERS, and TPAF. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) will be
amortized for each plan over an open-ended 30 year period and paid in level
dollars. Beginning with the July 1, 2019 actuarial valuation (July 1, 2018 for PFRS),
the UAAL will be amortized over a closed 30 year period until the remaining period
reaches 20, when the amortization period will revert to an open-ended 20 year
period.

COLA Suspension

The payment of automatic cost-of-living adjustment to current and future retirees
and beneficiaries are suspended until reactivated as permitted by this law.

Vesting and Benefit Provisions - The vesting and benefit provisions of PERS
are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and 43.3B, and N.J.5.A. 18A:6C for TPAF. All benefits
vest after ten years of service, except for post-retirement healthcare benefits that
vest after 25 years of service.

Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three years
of service credit, become vested for 2% of related interest earmned on the
contributions. In the case of death before retirement, members' beneficiaries are
entitled to full interest credited to the members’ accounts.

Contribution Requirements - The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A
and N.J.S.A. 18:66, and requires contributions by active members and contributing
employers. Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by State
of New Jersey legislation. As of April 1, 2018 employee contribution rates were
increased to 7.50%.
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Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both
TPAF and PERS. The actuarially determined contribution includes funding for
cost-of-living adjustments, noncontributory death benefits, and post-retirement
medical premiums. Under current statute the District is a non-contributing
employer of TPAF (i.e. the State of New Jersey makes the employer contribution
on behalf of public school districts.

PERS Contribution Requirements

Three-Year Trend Information for PERS

Year Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension
June 30 Cost (APC) APC Contributed Obligation
2021 $489,893.00 100.00% $489,893.00
2020 463,227.00 100.00% 463,227.00
2019 462,358.00 100.00% 462,358.00

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021, 2020 and 2019, the State of New
Jersey contributed $4,356,673.00, $3,240,238.00 and $2,989,035.00,
respectively to the TPAF pension system on behalf of the District.

Also, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, 2020 and 2019, the State of
New Jersey confributed $2,089.00, $2,277.00 and $2,625.00 respectively to the
TPAF long term disability insurance fund on behalf of the District.

Also in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:66-66, during the years ended June 30,
2021, 2020 and 2019, the State of New Jersey reimbursed the District
$1,023,470.00, $1,256,685.11 and $1,100,427.53, respectively for the
employer's share of social security contributions for TPAF members, as
calculated on their base salaries.
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Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)

At June 30, 2021, the District reported a liability of $7,302,781.00 for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was
measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total pension liability used to calculate the
net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019
which was rolled forward to June 30, 2020. The District's proportion of the net
pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all
participating members, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2020, the District's
proportion was 0.0447820463 percent, which was a decrease of 0.0028402845
percent from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2019.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized pension expense of
$256,876.00 in the government-wide financial statements. The pension expense
was based on the pension plans June 30, 2020 measurement date.

At June 30, 2021, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to PERS from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Cutflow of Inflow of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $132,972 $25,826
Changes of assumptions 236,910 3,057,743
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 249615
Changes in proportion and differences between District
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 438,480 876,621
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 530,875
$1,588,852 $3,960,190

The $530,875 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
resulting from school district contributions subsequent to the measurement date
(i.e. for the schoo!l year ending June 30, 2021, the plan measurement date is June
30, 2020) will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ended June 30, 2022.
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Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) {Continued)

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as
follows:

Year Ended
June 30 Amount
2021 ($1,003,993)
2022 (923,075)
2023 (565,064)
2024 (280,695)
2025 (129,386)

($2,902,213)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2020 measurement date was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019, which rolled forward to
June 30, 2020. These actuarial valuations used the following assumptions:

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
Inflation rate:
Price 2.75% 2.75%
Wage 3.25% 3.25%
Salary Increases:
Through 2026 2.00%-6.00% 2.00%-6.00%
Based on Years of Based on Years of
Service Service
Thereatfter 3.00%-7.00% 3.00%-7.00%
Based on Years of Based on Years of
Service Service
Investment Rate of Return 7.00% 7.00%

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-
Median Income Employee mortality table with an 82.2% adjustment for males
and 101.4% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base
year of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were based
on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median income Healthy Retiree mortality table
with a 91.4% adjustment for males and 99.7% adjustment for females, and with
future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis.
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Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

Disability retirement rates used to value disabled retirees were based on the Pub-
2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality table with a 127.7% adjustment for
males and 117.2% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the
base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Mortality improvement is based on
Scale MP-2020.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2019 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2014 to June 30,
2018.

Long-Term Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments (7.00% at both June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019) is determined by
the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of
investment and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the
actuaries. The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.
Best estimates of arithmetic rates of return for each major asset class included in
PERS’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2020 are summarized in the following
table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Asseis Class Allocation Rate of Return
U.S. Equity 27.00% 7.71%
Non-U.S. Developed Market Equity 13.50% 8.57%
Emerging Market Equity 5.50% 10.23%
Private Equity 13.00% 11.42%
Real Estate Assets 3.00% 9.73%
Real Estate 8.00% 9.56%
High Yield 2.00% 5.95%
Private Credit 8.00% 7.59%
Investment Grade Credit 8.00% 267%
Cash Equivalents 4.00% 0.50%
U.S. Treasuries 5.00% 1.94%
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 3.40%
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Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% and 6.28%
as of June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2018, respectively. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that
contributions from employers and the nonemployer contributing entity will be based
on 78% of the actuarially determined contributions for the State employer

and 100% of actuarially determined contributions for the local employers.

The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that
contributions from plan members will be made at the current member contribution
rates and that contributions from employers will be based on 70% of the actuarially
determined contributions for the State employer and 100% of actuarially
determined contributions for the local employers. Based on those assumptions,
the plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make projected
future benefit payments of current plan members through 2057. Therefore, the
long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to projected
benefit payments through 2057 and the municipal bond rate was applied to
projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Collective Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate

The following presents the District’'s proportionate share of the net pension liability
as of June 30, 2019, calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well
as what the collective net pension liability would be if it was calculated using a
discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than
the current rate:

1% At Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
6.00% 7.00% 8.00%
District's proportionate share
of the net pension liability $9,265,271 $7,302,781 $5,743,705
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Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in
the separately issued Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Public
Employees Retirement System (PERS). The report may be obtained at State of
New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits P.O. Box 295 Trenton, New
Jersey 08625-0295 http://www . state.nj.us/treasury/pensions.

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

The employer contributions for local participating employers are legally required to be
funded by the State in accordance with N.J.S.A 18:66-33. Therefore, these local
participating employers are considered to be in a special funding situation as defined
by GASB Statement No. 88 and the State is treated as a nonemployer contributing
entity. Since the local participating employers do not contribute directly to the pian
(except for employer specific financed amounts), there is no net pension liability or
deferred outfflows or inflows to report in the financial statements of the local
participating employers. However, the notes to the financial statements of the local
participating employers must disclose the portion of the nonemployer contributing
entities’ total proportionate share of the net pension liability that is associated with the
local participating employer.

The portion of the TPAF Net Pension Liability that was associated with the District
recognized at June 30, 2021 was as follows:

Net Pension Liability:

Districts proportionate share -0-
State's proportionate share
associated with the District $95,664,147.00

$95,564,147.00

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2019 which was rolled forward to June 30, 2020. The net
pension liability associated with the District was based on a projection of the District's
long-term share of contributions to the pension pian relative to the projected
contributions of all participating school districts and the State, actuarially determined.
At June 30, 2020, the proportion of the TPAF net pension liability associated with the
District was .1451266412 percent which was a decrease of .0037350400 percent
from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2019.
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Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized on-behalf pension
expense and revenue of $5,942 586.00 for contributions provided by the State.
This pension expense and revenue was based on the pension plan’'s June 30,
2020 measurement date.

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2020 measurement date was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019, which was rolled forward
to June 30, 2020. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement;

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
inflation rate:
Price 2.75% 2.75%
Wage 3.25% 3.25%
Salary Increases:
Through 2026 1.55%-4.45% 1.55%-4.55%
Based on Years of Based on Years of
Service Service
Thereafter 2.75%-5.65% 2.00%-5.65%
Based on Years of Based on Years of
Service Service
Investment Rate of Returmn 7.00% 7.00%

Mortality Rate

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-
Median Income Employee mortality table with a 93.9% adjustment for males and
85.3% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year
of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on
the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table
with a 114.7% adjustment for males and 99.6% adjustment for females, and with
future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis.
Disability mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled
Retiree mortality table with a 106.3% adjustment for males and 100.3%
adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010
on a generational basis. Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-2020.
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Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

Morality Rate {Continued)

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2019 valuation were based on the
resuits of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2015 to June 30,
2018.

L.ong-Term Expected Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments (7.00% and 7.00% at June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019
respectively) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the
Directors of the Division of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits,
the board of trustees and the actuaries.

The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce
the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future reai rates
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset
class included in TPAF's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2020 are
summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Assets Class Allocation Rate of Return
U.S. Equity 27.00% 7.71%
Non-U.S. Developed Market Equity 13.50% 8.57%
Emerging Market Equity 5.50% 10.23%
Private Equity 13.00% 11.42%
Real Estate Assets 3.00% 9.73%
Real Estate 8.00% 9.56%
High Yield 2.00% 5.95%
Private Credit 8.00% 7.59%
Investment Grade Credit 8.00% 2.67%
Cash Equivalents 4.00% 0.50%
U.S. Treasuries 5.00% 1.94%
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 3.40%
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Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund {TPAF) {Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.40% and
5.60% as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. This single blended discount
rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments of 7.00% for both June 30, 2020 and 2019, and a municipal
bond rate of 2.21% and 3.50% as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively,
based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-
exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or
higher. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate
assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current
member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be based
on 78% of the actuarially determined contributions for the State. Based on those
assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected o be available to
make projected future benefit payments of current plan members through 20862,
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied
to projected benefit payments through 2062 and the municipal bond rate was
applied to projected benefit payments after that date in determining the tiotal
pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

Because the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability is zero,
consideration of potential changes in the discount rate is not applicable to the
District.

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in
the separately issued Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Teachers
Public and Annuity Fund (TPAF). The report may be obtained at State of New
Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits P.O. Box 295 Trenton, New Jersey
08625-0295 hitp://lwww . state.nj.us/treasury/pensions.
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Plan Description and Benefits Provided

The State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan is a multiple-
employer defined benefit OPEB plan, which is administered on a pay-as-you-go
basis. Accordingly, no assets are accumulated in a qualifying trust that meets the
criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The State Health
Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan provides medical, prescription
drug, and Medicare Part B reimbursement to retirees and their covered
dependents of local education employers.

The employer contributions for the participating local education employers are
legally required to be funded by the State of New Jersey in accordance with
N.J.S.A 52:14-17.32f. Therefore, these local participating employers are
considered to be in a special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No.
75 and the State is treated as a nonemployer contributing entity. According to
N.J.S.A 52:14-17.32f, the State provides employer-paid coverage to employees
who retire from a board of education or county college with 25 years or more of
service credit in, or retires on a disability pension from, one or more of the following
plans: the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF), the Public Employees'
Retirement System (PERS), the Police and Firemen Retirement System (PFRS),
or the Alternate Benefit Program (ABP). Pursuant to Chapter 78, P.L, 2011, future
retirees eligible for postretirement medical coverage who have less than 20 years
of creditable service on June 28, 2011 will be required to pay a percentage of the
cost of their health care coverage in retirement provided they retire with 25 or more
years of pension service credit. The percentage of the premium for which the
retiree will be responsible will be determined based on the retiree's annual
retirement benefit and level of coverage.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

The State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan Membership
covered by the benefit terms consisted of the following:

Active Plan Members 216,804
Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries
Currently Receiving Benefits 149,304

Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries
Not Yet Receiving Benefits -0-
Total Plan Members 366,108
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Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability

The portion of the total Non-Employer OPEB Liability that was associated with the
District at June 30, 2021 was as follows:

Non-Employer OPEB Liability:

Districts Proportionate Share -0-
State’s Proportionate Share
Associated with the District $102,696,537.00

$102,696,537.00

The total Non-Employer OPEB liability as of June 30, 2020 was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2020.

The total Non-Employer OPEB liability was determined separately based on actual
data of the District.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized on-behalf post-
employment expense and revenue of $5,267,844.00 in the government-wide
financial statements for contributions provided by the State. This expense and
revenue was based on plans June 30, 2020 measurement date

At June 30, 2020, the District's proportion was 0.1514475647 percent, which was
an increase of .0028867279 percent from its proportion measured as of June 30,
2019.

The State, a non-employer contributing entity, is the only entity that has a legal
obligation to make employer contributions to OPEB for qualified retired PERS.
TPAF/ABP and PFRS participants. The District’s proportionate share percentage
determined under paragraphs 193 and 203 through 205 of GASBS No. 75 is zero
percent. Consequently, the District did not recognize any portion of the collective
Non-Employer OPEB liability on the Statement of Net Position.
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Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs

The total Non-Employer OPEB liability that was associated with the District as of
June 30, 2020 was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019, which
was rolled forward to June 30, 2020.The actuarial assumptions vary for each plan
member depending on the pension plan the member is enrolled in. This actuarial
valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the
measurement;

June 30, 2020

TPAFIABP PERS PFERS
Inflation — 2.5%
Salary increases
Through 2026 1.55-4.45%* 2.00-6.00%* 3.25-15.25%"
Thereafter 1.55-4.45%* 3.00-7.00%* Applied to

All Future Years
June 30, 2019

TPAF/ABP PERS PFRS
CPI - 2.5%
Salary Increases
Through 2026 1.55-3.05%* 2.00-6.00%" 3.25-15.25%"
Thereafter 1.55-3.06%* 3.00-7.00%" Applied to

All Future Years
*- Based on Years of Service

Preretirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Healthy "Teachers"
(TPAF/ABP), "General” (PERS), and "Safety" (PFRS) classification headcount-
weighted mortality table with fully generational mortality improvement projections
from the central year using Scale MP-2020. Postretirement mortality rates were
based on the Pub-2010 "General" classification headcount-weighted mortality
table with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central
year using Scale MP-2020. Disability mortality was based on the Pub-2010
"General” classification headcount-weighted disabled mortality table with fully

generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale
MP-2020.
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Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs (continued)
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019 valuation were based on the
resuits of actuarial experience studies for the periods July 1, 2015— June 30,
2018, July 1, 2014 — June 30, 2018, and July 1, 2013 - June 30, 2018 for TPAF,
PERS and PFRS, respectively.
Health Care Trend Assumptions
For pre-Medicare medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 5.6% and decreases
to a 4.5% long-term trend rate after seven years. For post-65 medical benefits, the
actual fully-insured Medicare Advantage trend rates for fiscal year 2021 through
2022 are reflected. The assumed post-65 medical trend is 4.5% for all future years.
For prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 7.0% and decreases to a
4.5% long-term trend rate after seven years. For the Medicare Part B
reimbursement, the trend rate is 5§.0%.
Discount Rate
The discount rate for June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019 was 2.21% and 3.50%
respectively. This represents the municipal bond return rate as chosen by the
Division. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond index, which
includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of
AA/Aa or higher. As the long-term rate of return is less than the municipal bond
rate, it is not considered in the calculation of the discount rate, rather the discount
rate is set at the municipal bond rate.
Changes in the Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability
Shown below are details regarding The Total OPEB non-employer Liability
associated with the District for the measurement period from June 30, 2019 to June
30, 2020.
Balance at 6/30/19 $61,993,072
Changes for the year:
Service cost $2,598,955
Interest 2,230,643
Differences between expected
and actual experience 18,848,411
Changes in assumptions or
other inputs 18,759,128
Membership Contributions 54,190
Benefit payments - Net (1,787,862)
Net changes 40,703,465
Balance at 6/30/20 $102,696,537
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Sensitivity of the Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate

The following presents the total Non-Employer OPEB liability associated with the
District as of June 30, 2020, calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above
as well as what the total Non-Employer OPEB liability would be if it was calculated
using a discount rate that is 1 -percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher
than the current rate:

June 30, 2020

1.00% At Discount 1.00%
Decrease (1.21%) Rate (2.21%) Increase (3.21%)
State of New Jersey's
Proportionate Share of
the total Non-Employer
OPEB Liability associated
with the District $123,805,976 $102,696,537 $86,190,989

Sensitivity of the Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability to Changes in
Healthcare Trends

The following presents the total Non-Employer OPEB liability associated with the
District as of June 30, 2020, calculated using the healthcare trend rate as disclosed
above as well as what the total Non-Employer OPEB liability would be if it was
calculated using a healthcare trend rate that is 1- percentage point lower or 1-
percentage point higher than the current rate:

June 30, 2020

1.00% Healthcare Cost 1.00%
Decrease _ Trend Rate : Increase
State of New Jersey's
Proportionate Share of
the total Non-Employer
OPEB Liability associated
with the District $82,900,108 $102,696,537 $126,269,684
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Borough of Middlesex School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

NOTE 8: ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASE 75 (CONTINUED)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred inflows of
Resources Related to OPEB

At June 30, 2020, the State reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to retired school employee's OPEB associated with
the District from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Qutflow of Inflow of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected
and actual experience $15,592,010 $13,888,807
Changes of assumptions 17.468,343 11,718,257
Changes in proportion 2,929,865 341,497
$35,090,218 $25,948 561

Amounts reported as deferred outfiows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to retired school employee’s non-employee OPEB associated
with the District will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Measurement
Period Ended
June 30 Amount
2021 $583,463
2022 $583,463
2023 $583,463
2024 $583,463
2025 $583,463
Total
Thereafter $7.124,344

$10,041,657
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NOTE 8:

NOTE 9:

NOTE 10:

Borough of Middlesex School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred inflows of

Resources Related to OPEB (Continued)

In accordance with GASBS No. 75, the District's proportionate share of school
retirees OPEB is zero. There is no recognition of the allocation of proportionate
share of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources in the
financial statements.

State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employee Plan Information

The New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits issues publicly available reports
on the OPEB plan. Those reports may be obtained by writing to the Division of
Pension and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, NJ 08625-0295 or on their website
at:

hitp./fwww.state nj.us/treasury/pensions/gasb-notices-opeb.shtml

LITIGATION

The Board attorney’s letter advises that there is no litigation, pending litigation,
claims, contingent liabilities, unasserted claims or assessments or statutory
violations which involve the Board of Education and which might materially affect
the Board’s financial position.

CONTINGENCIES

The District receives financial assistance from the State of New Jersey and the
U.S. Government in the form of grants. Entitlement {o the funds is generally
conditional upon compliance with terms and conditions of the grant agreements
and applicable regulations, including the expenditure of the funds for eligible
purposes. The State and Federal grants received and expended in the 2020-2021
fiscal year were subject to the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circular
15-08 which mandates that grant revenues and expenditures be audited in
conjunction with the District's annual audit if expenditures for federal or state
programs exceed $750,000. Findings and questioned costs, if any, relative to
federal and state financial assistance programs are discussed in the Single Audit
Section, Scheduie of Findings and Questioned Costs. In addition, all grants and
cost reimbursements are subject to financial and compliance audits by the
grantors. The District’s management does not believe any such audit would result
in materiai amounts of disallowed costs.
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NOTE 11:

NOTE 12:

Borough of Middlesex School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2021

RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to,
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural
disasters.

Property and_Liability Insurance - The District maintains commercial insurance
coverage for property, liability, and student accident and surety bonds. A complete
schedule of insurance coverage can be found in the Statistical Section of this
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance - The District has elected to
fund its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the “Benefit
Reimbursement Method”. Under this plan, the District is required to reimburse the
New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its former employees
and charged to its account with the State. The District is billed guarterly for
amounts due to the State. Charges are applied to the Unemployment
Compensation Claims Payable first, and any remaining charges are applied to the
Unemployment Compensation budget appropriation.

The following table is a summary of District contributions, employee contributions,
reimbursements to the State for benefits paid and the combined ending balance of
the District’'s Unemployment Compensation Claims Payable and Unemployment
Restricted Fund Balance for the current and previous two years:

District Employee Amount Ending
Fiscal Year Contributions Contributions Reimbursed Balance
2020-2021 $15,000.00 $100,726.45 $64,781.79 $188,967.70
2019-2020 15,000.00 73,830.51 76,451.75 138,023.04
2018-2019 15,000.00 59,5635.95 84,029.19 125,644.28

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES
All balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that short-term loans were

disbursed and payments between funds were made. The following interfund
balances remained on the balance sheet at June 30, 2021.
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NOTE 13:

NOTE 14:

Borough of Middlesex School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED

General Fund -~ Of the $8,237,570.08 General Fund fund balance at June 30,
2021, $141,656.82 has been assigned for year-end encumbrances; unassigned
fund balance was $858,319.27; $4,653,507.23 has been restricted in the Capital
Reserve Account; $759,294.44 has been restricted in the Maintenance Reserve;
$3,860.12 has been restricted for FFCRA semi designated for subsequent years
expenditures; $30,000.00 has been restricted for unemployment compensation;
$1,790,932.20 has been restricted as excess surplus in accordance with N.J.S.A.
18A7F-7, of which $1,040,932.20 has been appropriated and included as
anticipated revenue in the 2021-2022 budget.

CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS-BUDGETARY BASIS

in accordance with N.J.S.A.18A.7F-7, as amended by P.L. 2004,¢.73 (81701), the
designation for Restricted Fund Balance - Excess Surplus is a required calculation
pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational improvement and
Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA). New Jersey school districts are required to
restrict General Fund fund balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did
not appropriate a required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their
subsequent years’ budget. Based on this calculation, the Middlesex School District
has $750,000.00 excess fund balance resulting from the year ended June 30,
2021.

General Fund Expenditures

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 $41,164,152.74
Add:

Transfer from Capital Qutlay fo Capital Projects Fund 150,000.00
Less:

On-behalf TPAF Pension and Social Security Reimbursement 6,747,546.00
Adjusted General Fund Expenditures 34,566,606.74
Excess Surplus Percentage 4.00%
4% of Adjusted 2020-21 General Fund Expenditures 1,382,664.27
Add: Allowable Adjustments 533,044.00
Maximum Unassigned Fund Balance 1,915,708.27
Actual Unassigned Fund Balance 2,665,708.27
Excess Surplus $750,000.00
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NOTE 15:

NOTE 16:

Borough of Middlesex School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT

A capital reserve account was established by the Borough of Middlesex Board of
Education by the inclusion of $1,000.00 in the 2000-2001 school year for the
accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal
years. The capital reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its activity
is included in the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in
the district’s approved Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the
LRFP to the department, a district may increase the balance in the capital reserve
as per N.JSA 18A7G-31(c), 18A:77G-13 and N.JAC. B6A23A-141 by
appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes. A district
may also appropriate additional amounts when the express approval of the voters
has been obtained either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a special
question at one of the four special elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-
2. N.J.S.A 18A7F-41(a), 18A7F-41(b) and N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-14.3 permit a district
board of education to transfer by board resolution (prior to June 30) any
unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item appropriation amounts to the
capital reserve for withdrawal in subsequent school years. Pursuant to N.J.A.C.
8:23A-5.1(d) 7, the balance in the account cannot at any time exceed the local
costs of uncompleted capital projects in its approved LRFP.

The activity of the capital reserve for the year ending June 30, 2021 year is as follows:

Beginning balance, July 1, 2020 $2,372,531.47
Add: Transfer per Board Resolution $2,000,000.00
Add: Closed Capitat Projects 280,975.76

2,280,975.76
Ending balance, June 30, 2021 $4,653,507.23
DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The District offers its employees a choice of the deferred compensation plans
created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b) and 457. The
ptans permit participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years.
Amounts deferred under the plans are not available to employees until termination,
retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. Since the District does not have
any property or rights to the plan assets and no fiduciary relationship exists
between the District and the deferred compensation plan, the plan assets are not
included in the District’s financial statements as of June 30, 2021.
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NOTE 17:

NOTE 18:

Borough of Middlesex School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

MAINTENANCE RESERVE

A maintenance reserve was established through a board resolution by the Borough
of Middlesex School District in the amount of $150,000.00 in the 2007-2008 school
year for the accumulation of funds for the required maintenance of a facility in
accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7G-9 as amended by P.L. 2004, ¢. 73 (S1701).
N.J.S.A. 18A:7G-31(c), 18A:7G-13 and N.J.A.C. BA:23A-14.2 permits districts, by
board resolution, to transfer undesignated general fund balance to the
maintenance reserve account if approved in the district’s original budget certified
for taxes or if the district received voter approval by a separate proposal at budget
time or by special question at one of the four special elections authorized pursuant
to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. N.J.S.A. 1BA7TF-41(a), 18A:7F-41(b) and N.J.A.C. BA:23A-
14.3 permit a district board of education to transfer by board resolution (prior to
June 30) any unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item appropriation
amounts to the maintenance reserve for withdrawal in subsequent school years.

The activity of the maintenance reserve for the year ending June 30, 2021
is as follows:

Balance, July 1, 2020 $503,300.00
Add: Board resolution 255,994 .44
Ending balance, June 30, 2021 $759,204 44
TAX ABATEMENTS

As defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), a tax
abatement is an agreement between a government and an individual or entity in
which the government promises to forgo tax revenues and the individual or entity
promises to subsequently take a specific action that contributes to economic
development or otherwise benefits the government or its citizens. School districts
are not authorized by New Jersey statute to enter into tax abatement agreements.
However, the county or municipality in which the school district is situated may
have entered into tax abatement agreements, and that potential must be disclosed
in these financial statements. If the county of municipality entered into tax
abatement agreements, those agreements will not directly affect the school
district's local tax revenue because N.J.S.A. 54:4-75 and N.J.S.A. 54:4-76 require
that amounts so forgiven must effectively be recouped from other taxpayers and
remitted to the school district.

For a local school district board of education or board of school estimate that has
elected to raise their minimum tax levy using the required local share provisions at
N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-5(b), the loss of revenue resulting from the municipality or county
having entered into a tax abatement agreement is indeterminate due to the
complex nature of the calculation of required local share performed by the New
Jersey Department of Education based upan district property value and wealth.
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NOTE 19:

Borough of Middlesex School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

As of July 1, 2020 the District implemented GASB Statement No. 84 Fiduciary
Activities (CASB 84). Certain agency funds previously accounted for activities
that are not considered fiduciary in nature and are now reported in the

Governmental Funds. The District restated the net position and fund balance of
the funds indicated below to appropriately reflect the June 30, 2020 balances as

follows:

Governmental Funds

General Fund

Governmental Funds
Special Revenue Fund

Fund Balance 06/30/20 $4,856,755.62 $-0-
Adjustments:

Unemployment Trust 15,000.00

Scholarships 97,082.98

Student Activities 133,235.55
Fund Balance 06/30/20 (as restated) $4,871,755.62 $230,318.53

Fiduciary Fund

Liabilities Balance 06/30/20 $359,915.10
Payroll deductions and withholdings {226,679.55)
Due to student groups (133,235.55)

Liabilities 06/30/20 (as restated) $-0-

Governmental
Activities Fiduciary Fund

Net Position 06/30/20 $15,243,980.30 $235,106.02
Adjustments:

Student Activities 133,235.55

Scholarships 97,082.98 {97,082.98)

Unemployment 15,000.00 (138,023.04)
Net Position 06/30/20 (as restated) $15,489,308.83 $-0-
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NOTE 20:

NOTE 21:

Borough of Middlesex School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

INVENTORY
inventory in the Food Service Fund at June 30, 2021 consist of the following:

Food and Supplies $15,424.99

The value of Federal donated commodities as reflected on Schedule A (required
by the Single Audit Law of 1884) is the difference between market value and cost
of the commodities at the date of purchase and has been included as an item of
non-operating revenue in the financial statements.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Board of Education has evaluated subsequent events occurring after the
financial statement date through January 31, 2022 which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued. Based upon this evaluation, the District
has determined that no subsequent events needed to be disclosed.
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
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BORCUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOOL DISTRICT

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION

NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Sources/inflows of resources

Actual amounts {budgetary) "revenues” from the
budgetary comparison schedules

Difference - budget to GAAP

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from
GAAP in that encumbrances are recognized as
expenditures, and related revenue is recognized.

State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements in
the current year, previously recognized for budgetary
purposes.

State aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes,
not recognized for GAAP statements until the
subsequent year.

Total revenues as reported on the statement of

revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances
- governmental funds.

Uses/outflows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows” from the

budgetary comparison schedules

Difference - budget to GAAP

Encumbrances for supplies and eguipment ordered
but not received are reporied in the year the order is
placed for budgetary purposes, but in the year the
supplies are received for financial purposes

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances
- governmental funds.

04

EXHIBIT "C-3"

SPECIAL
GENERAL REVENUE
FUND FUND
$44,188,649.11 $1,413,856.40
8,937.90
1,023,470.00

(1,057,389.00)

$44,154,730.11

$1,422 794.30

$41,164,152.74

$1.425,073.87

8.937.90

$41.164,152.74

$1,434,011.77




REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART i
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SCHEDULES RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR PENSION (GASE 68)
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EXHIBIT "L4"
BOROUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHCOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION PART Il
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS)

Change in benefit terms:

None
Change in assumptions

The following assumptions were used in calculating the net pension
liability in their respective accounting periods:

Long-Term
Measurement Expected Actuarial
Date Ending Discount Rate of Experience
June 30, Rate Return Study Period
2020 7.00% 7.00% 07/01/14-06/30/18
2019 6.28% 7.00% 07/01/14-06/30/18
2018 5.66% 7.00% 07/01/11-06/30/14
2017 5.00% 7.00% 07/01/11-06/30/14
2016 3.98% 7.65% Q7/01/11-06/30/14
2015 4.90% 7.90% 07/01/08-06/30/11
2014 5.39% 7.90% 07/01/08-06/30/11
2013 5.55% 7.90% 07/01/08-06/30/11

TEACHERS PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND (TPAF)

Change in benefit terms:
None
Change in assumptions

The following assumptions were used in calculating the net pension
fiability in their respective accounting periods:.

Long-Term
Measurement Expected Actuarial
Date Ending Discount Rate of Experience
June 30, Rate Return Study Period
2020 5.40% 7.00% 07/01/15-06/30/18
2019 5.60% 7.00% 07/01/15-06/30/18
2018 4.86% 7.00% 07/01/12-06/30/15
2017 4.25% 7.00% 07/01/12-06/30/15
2016 3.22% 7.65% 07/01/12-06/30/15
2015 4.13% 7.90% 07/01/09-06/30/12
2014 4.68% 7.90% 07/01/09-06/30/12
2013 4.95% 7.90% 07/01/08-06/30/12
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART iV
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SCHEDULE RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN
PENSIONS (GASB 75)
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BOROUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOQOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE TOTAL
OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
LAST TEN YEARS

Measurement Date Ended June 30,

EXHIBIF "M-1"

2020 2018 2018

2017

Totat Non-Employer OPEB Liability - State's Proportionate Share
of Total OPEB Liabilily Associated with the School District

Balance at 6/30 $61,893,072.00 $67,246,04C.00 $78,672,130.00 $84,666,411.00
Changes for the year:
Service cost 2,598,955.00 2,454,354.00 2,836,010.00 3,421,588.00
Interest 2,230,643.00 2,662,013.00 2,887,190.00 2,486,528 .00
Differences between expected
and actual experience 18,848,411.00 (9,447,065.00) {7,696,481.00}
Changes in assumptions or
ather inputs 18,759,128.00 924,322.00 {7.716,820.00) (10,177,282.00)
Membership Contributions 54,190.00 56,410.00 62,146.00 (1,822,213.00)
Benefit payments - Net {1,787 862.00) {1,903,602.00) {1,798,135.00} 67.098.00
Net changes 40,703,465.00 (5,252,968.00) {11,426,090.00) {6,024,281.00)
Balance at 6/30 102,696,537.00 61,893,072.00 67,246,040.00 78,672,130.00
Covered Employee Payroll 19,522, 738,00 18,735,707.00 18,626,350.00 18,823,314.00
District's Proportionate Share of the Total Non-Employer
OPER Liability as a percentage of the District's
Covered Employee Payroll -0- -G- -0- -0-
State’'s Proportionate Share of the Total Non-Employer
OPEB Liabikity associated with the District as a percentage
of the District’s Covered Employee Payrol 526.04% 330.88% 361.03% 417.95%

Note: Schedule is intended to show ten year trend. Additional years will he reporied as they become available.
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EXHIBIT "M-2"

BOROUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION PART IV
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Change in benefit terms: None

Change in assumptions:
The following assumptions were used in calculating the net OPEB liability
in their respective accounting periods:

Measurement
Date Ending Discount
June 30, Rate
2020 2.21%
2019 3.50%
2018 3.87%
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUND DETAIL STATEMENTS

Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specific purposes other than debt
service or capital projects.
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND DETAI. STATEMENTS

The capital projects fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,
committed or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of
capital facilities and other capital assets.
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BOROUGH OF MIDBLESEX SCHOOQL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUIND
SUMMARY SCHEBDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SCURCES:
Transfer from capital outlay/ Capital Reserve
Security Grant
Interest earned

Total revenues and other financing sources

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:
Purchased professional and technical services
Construction services
Transfer out - general fund

Total expenditures and other financing uses

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures

Fund balance - July 1

Fund balance - June 30

Reconciliation to GAAP Basis:

Fund Balance June 30 - Budgetary Basis (Exhibit F-2)
Less: Unrealized grant revenue

Fund Balance June 30 - GAAP Basis (Exhibit B-2)

111

EXHIBIT "F-2"

$150,000.00
116,934.00
53.46

266,987.46

26,786.26
224,726.46
525,237.09

776,749.80
{509,762.34)
525 304.82

$15.542 48

$15,542.48

{15,542.48)

$-0-




BOROUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS
BUDGETARY BASIS - PARKER SCHOOL BOILER REPLACEMENT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Transfer from capital outlay/ capital reserve

Total revenues and other financing sources

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:

Purchased professional and technical services
Construction services

Total expenditures and other financing uses

Excess {(deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expenditures

ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:
Project number
Grant date
Original authorized cost
Additional authorized cost
Revised authorized cost
Percentage increase over ariginal

authorized cost

Percentage completion
Original target completion date
Revised target completion date

EXHIBIT "F-24"

REVISED
AUTHORIZED
PRICR PERICDS CURRENT YEAR TOTALS COsT

$620,000.00 ($188,818.86) $431,181.14 $431,181.44

6520,000,00 (188,818.86) 431,181.14 431,181.14

53,637.76 24.56 53,662.32 53,862.32

330,389.82 47,129.00 377.518.82 377,518.82

384,027.58 47,153.56 431,181.14 431,181.14
$235,972.42 {$235,072.42)

3140-070-19-1000
N/A
$620,000.00
(188,818.86)
$431,181.14

NiA
100.00%
9/30/2019
10/31/2020
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BOROUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF PRCJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATHS
BUDGETARY BASIS - HIGH SCHOOL ROOF AND HVAC

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

State sources - SDA Grant
Transfer from capital outiay/ capital reserve
Transfer from other projects

Total revenues and other financing sources

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:

Purchased professional and technical services
Construction services

Total expenditures and other financing uses

Excess {deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expenditures

ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:
Project number
Grant date
Original authorized cost
Additionatl authorized cost
Revised authorized cost
Percentage increase over original

authorized cost

Percentage completion
Original target completion date
Revised target completion date

EXHIBIT "F-2B"

REVISED
AUTHORIZED
PRIOR PERIODS  CURRENT YEAR TOTALS COST
$628,979.00 $628,979.00 $628,979.00
£25,950.00 ($1,373.74) 624,576.26 624,576.26
266,211.00 256,211.00 256,211.00
1,511,140.00 (1,373.74) 1,500,766.26 1,509,766.26
125,105.26 126,105.26 125,105.26
1,384,661.00 1,384,661.00 1,384 ,661.00
1,509,766.26 1,508,766.26 1,509,766.26
$1,373.74 ($1,373.74)

3140-050-14-1001

NIA
$1,494,810.00
14,956.26
$1,509,766.26

0.99%
100.00%
9/15/14
2128115
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BORGUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS
BUDGETARY BASIS - HIGH SCHOOL SECURITY UPGRADES

EROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

State sources - SDA Grant
Transfer from capital outlay/ capital reserve

Total revenues and other financing sources

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:

Purchased professional and technicat services
Construction services

Totat expenditures and other financing uses

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expenditures

ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:
Project number
Grant date
Original authorized cost
Additional authorized cost
Revised authorized cost
Percentage increase over original

authorized cost

Percentage completion
Original target completion date
Revised target completion date

EXHIBIT "F-2C"

REVISED
AUTHORIZED
PRIOR PERIODS CURRENT YEAR TOTALS COST

$122,324.00 $122,324.00 $122,324.00

153,205.00 ($2,815.97) 150,388.03 150,389.03

275,629.00 (2,815.97) 272,713.03 272,713.03

19,768.03 19,768.03 19,768.03

252,945.00 252,945.00 252,945.00

272,713.03 272,713.03 272,713.03
$2,815.97 ($2,815.97)

3140-050-14-1003

32114
$275,529.00

(2,815.97)
$272,713.03

NIA
100.00%
9130/15
6/30/17
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BOROUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOQL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEBULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS
BUDGETARY BASIS - VON E. MAUGER SECURITY UPGRADES

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

State sources - SDA grant
Transfer from capilal cutlay

Total revenues and other financing sources

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:

Purchased professional and lechnical services
Construction services

Total expendifures and other financing uses

Excess {deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:
Project number
Grant date
Criginal authorized cost
Additionat authorized cost
Revised authorized cost
Percentage increase over original

authorized cost

Percentage completion
Criginal target completion date
Revised target completion date

REVISED
AUTHORIZED
PRIOR PERIODS ~ CURRENT YEAR TOTALS COST
$84,216.00 $84,216.00 $84,216.00
105,478.00 ($4,998.88) 100,479.12 100,479.12
189,694.00 (4,998.88) 184,695.12 184,695.12
10,020.42 10,020.42 10,020.42
174,674.70 174,674.70 174,674.70
184,695.12 184,695.12 184,695.12
$4,998.88 ($4,998.88)

3140-085-14-1007

312114
$189,694.00

{4,998.88)
$184,695.12

NIA
100.00%
9/30/15
613017
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BOROUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOOL BISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF PRGJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

BUDGETARY BASIS - HIGH SCHOOL SECURITY CAMERAS

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Proceeds from lease purchase

Total revenues and other financing sources

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:

Construction services
Total expenditures and other financing uses

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expendiiures

ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:
Project number
Grant date
Origina! authorized cost
Additional authorized cost
Revised authorized cost
Percentage increase over original

authorized cost

Percentage completion
Original target completion date
Revised target complation date

REVISED
AUTHORIZED
PRIOR PERIODS CURRENT YEAR TOTALS COST

$191,312.00 (31,575.00) $189,737.00 $189,737.00

191,312.00 {1,675.00) 189,737.00 189,737.00

189,737.00 189,737.00 189,737.00

189,737.00 189,737.00 188,737.00

$1,575.00 ($1,575.00)

NIA
N/A
$191,312.00
(1,575.00)
$189,737.00
N/A
100.00%
10/31/2018
NA
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BOROUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS
BUDGETARY BASIS - VON E. MAUGER SECURITY CAMERAS

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Proceeds from lease purchase

Total revenues and other financing sources

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:

Construction services
Total expenditures and other financing uses

Excess {deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:
Project number
Grani date
Original authorized cost
Additional authorized cost
Revised authorized cost
Percentage increase over original

authorized cost

Percentage completion
Original target completion date
Revised target completion date

EXHIBIT "F-2F"
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REVISED
AUTHORIZED
PRIOR PERIODS  CURRENT YEAR TOTALS CosT

$172,245.00 ($1,575.00) $170,670.00 $170,670.00

172,245.00 (1,575.00) 170,670.00 170,670.00

170,670.00 170,670.00 170,670.00

170,670.00 170,670.00 170,670.00

$1,575.00 {$1,575.00)

NIA
NIA
$172,245.00
(1,575.00)
$170,670.00
N/A
100.00%
10/31/2018
N/A



BORQUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOOCL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE. AND PRQJECT STATUS

BUDGETARY BASIS - HIGH SCHCOL HVAC UPGRADES
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Proceeds from lease purchase

Total revenues and other financing sources

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:

Purchased professional and technical services
Total expenditures and other financing uses

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expendilures

ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:
Project number
Grant date
Original authorized cost
Additional authorized cost
Revised authorized cost
Percentage increase over original

authorized cost

Percentage compietion
Criginal target completion date
Revised target completion date

EXHIBIT "F-2G"

REVISED
AUTHORIZED
PRIGR PERIODS CURRENT YEAR TOTALS cOst

$216,443.00 ($193,193.62) $23,249.38 $23,249.38

216,443.00 (193,193.62) 23,249.38 23,249.38

23,249.38 23,249.38 23,248.38

23,249.38 23,249.38 23,249.38
$193,193.62 ($193,193.62)

3140-050-18-3000
N/A
$216,443.00
{193,1983.62)
$23,249.38

N/A
100.00%
83172019
B/A
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BOROQUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOO!L DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

BUDGETARY BASIS - VON E. MAUGER HVAC SYSTEM

EROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Proceeds from lease purchase

Total revenues and other financing sources

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:

Purchased professional and technical services
Construction services

Total expenditures and other financing uses

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expenditures

ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:
Project number
Grant date
Original authorized cost
Additional authorized cost
Revised authorized cost
Percentage increase over original

authorized cost

Percentage completion
Original farget completion date
Revised target completion date

EXHIBIT "F-2H"

REVISED
AUTHORIZED
PRIOR PERIODS CURRENT YEAR TOTALS COST
$780,000.00 ($47.864.25) $732,135.75 $732,135.75
780,000.00 (47.864.25) 732,135.75 732,135.75
69,410.91 69,410.91 69,410.91
626,788.90 35,935.94 662,724.84 662,724.84
696,199.81 35,035.94 732,135.75 73213575
$83,800.1% ($83,800.19)
N/A
WA
$780,000.00
{47,864.25)
$732,135.75
NfA
100.00%
9/30/2019
9/28/2020
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BOROUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS
BUDGETARY BASIS - WATCHUNG PEDIMENT PROJECT

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Transfer from capital outlay/ capital reserve

Total revenues and other financing sources

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:

Purchased professional and technical services
Construction services

Total expenditures and other financing uses

Excess {deficiency} of revenues over
{under) expendilures

ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:
Project number
Gramt date
Qriginal authorized cost
Additionat authorized cost
Revised authorized cost
Percentage increase over original

authorized cost

Percentage completion
Criginal target completion date
Revised target completion date

REVISED
AUTHORIZED
PRIOR PERIODS ~ CURRENT YEAR TOTALS COST
$67,031.69 $67,031.69 $67,031.69
67,031.69 67,031.69 67,031.69
26,761.69 26,761.69 26,761.69
40,270.00 40,270.00 40,270.00
67.031.69 67,031.69 67,031.69
$-0- $-0- $-0-
NIA
N/A
$150,000.60
(82,968.31)
$67,031.69
N/A
100.00%
113172021
N/A
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BOROUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

BUDGETARY BASIS - DISTRICT- WIDE SCHOOL SECURITY PROJECT

EROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

School Security Grant- Alyssa's Law

Total revenues and other financing sources

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:

Consruction services
Total expenditures and other financing uses

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:
Project number
Granl date
Original authorized cost
Additional authorized cost
Revised authorized cost
Percentage increase over original

authorized cost

Perceniage completion
Qriginal target completion date
Revised target completion date

EXHIBIT "F-2."
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REVISED
AUTHORIZED
PRIOR PERICDS CURRENT YEAR JCTALS COST
$116,934.00 $116,934.00 $116,934.00
116,934.00 116,934.00 116,934.00
101,391.52 101,391.52 116,934.00
101,391.52 101,391.52 116,934.00
$-0- $15,542.48 $15,542.48
N/A
NIA
$116,934.00
$116,934.00
N/A
90.00%
6/30/2022
N/A



PROPRIETARY FUND DETAIL STATEMENTS

Proprietary funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the district's board is that the costs
of providing goods or services be financed through user charges.

Food Services Fund: This fund provides for the operation of food services in all schools within the school district.

Community School Fund: This fund provides for the operation of a community school program.
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BOROUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOOL DISTRICT

PROPRIETARY FLIND

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ASSETS:

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable:
State
Federal
Other
Prepaid expenses
inventories

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Furniture, machinery & equipment
l.ess: Accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Unearned Revenue

Total current liabilities

NET POSITION:

Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

AS OF JUNE 30, 2021

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUND

EXHIBIT "G-1"

FOOD COMMUNITY
SERVICE SCHOOL
FUND FUND TOTAL
$236,049.43 $52,073.81 $288,123.24
2,468.17 2,468.17
71,156.13 71,156.13
971.02 971.02
15,424.99 15,424.99
326,069.74 52,073.81 378,143.55
653,957.29 653,957.20
(386,629.84) (386,629.84)
267,327.45 267,327.45
593,397.19 52,073.81 645,471.00
36,666.67 31,387.50 68,054.17
36,666.67 31,387.50 68,064.17
267,327 .45 267,327.45
289,403.07 20,686.31 310,0858.38
$556,730.52 $20,686.31 $577,416.83
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EXHIBIT "(3-2"

BOROUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPRIETARY FUND

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POS|TION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUND

FOOD COMMUNITY
SERVICE SCHOOL TOTAL
OPERATING REVENUES:
Local sources:
Daily sales-reimbursable programs
Daily sales non-reimbursable programs
Daily sales- other 67.42 67.42
Program fees $17,127.50 17,127.50
Total operating revenue 67.42 17,127.50 17,194.92
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries 100,273.71 126,884.35 227,158.08
Employee benefits and taxes 27,918.67 37,206.68 65,125.35
QOther purchased services 99.00 99.00
Management fee 25,500.00 25,500.00
Supplies and materiais 934.10 81.00 1,015.10
Miscellaneous 31,371.39 35.00 31,406.39
Depreciation 25,218.84 25,219.84
Cost of food sales - reimbursable programs 169,130.83 169,130.83
Cost of food sales - non-reimbursable programs
Total operating expenses 380,348.54 164,306.03 544 654,57
Operating income (loss) (380,281.12) (147,178.53} {527,459.65)
Nonoperating revenues:
State sources:
State school lunch program 10,653.39 10,653.39
Federal sources:
National school lunch program 202,857.12 202,857.12
National school breakfast program 121,174.43 121,174.43
National food distribution commodities 32,981.26 32,981.26
Emergency operational cost reimbursement 42,576.03 42.576.03
P-EBT administrative cost reimbursement 614.00 614.00
Interest Earned 174.86 174.86
Total nonoperating revenues 410,856.23 174.86 411,031.09
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures 30,575.11 {147.003.67) {116,428.56)
QOther financing sources (uses):
Disposal of capital assels
Operating transfers out
Net income {loss) 30,575.11 (147,003.87) (116,428.56)
Net position - July 1 526,155.41 167,689.98 693,845.39
Net position - June 30 $556,730.52 $20,686.31 $577,416.83
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BOROUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOOI DISTRICT
PROPRIETARY FUND

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUND

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Payments to employees
Payments for employee benefils
Payments to suppliers

Net cash provided (used) by operating aclivities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
State sources
Federal sources

Net cash provided {used) by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities;
Interest Earned

Net cash provided {(used) by investing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Purchases of capital assets

Net cash provided {used) by capital and related financing
activities

Net increase{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30

Operating income(loss)
Adjustments {o reconcile operating income (loss)
to cash provided (used) by operating activities;

Depreciation and net amortization
Transfer out- rental fee

Change in assets and lHabilities:
increase {Decrease} in uneared revenue
{increase) Decrease in inventory
{Increase) Decrease in prepaid expense
({Increase) Decrease in accounts receivable
Increase (Decrease) in accounts payable

Net cash provided (used) by operating activitios

EXHIBIT "G-3"

FOOD COMMUNITY
SERVICE SCHOOL TOTAL

$901.52 $53,990.00 $54,801.52
(100,273.71) (126,884.35) (227.,158.08)
(27,918.67) (37,206.68) (65,125.35)
(241,962.78) (215.00) (242,177.78)
(369,253.64) (110,316.03) (479,569.67)
10,580.76 10,580.76
337,543.99 337,543.99
348,124.75 348,124.75
174.86 174.86

174.86 174.86
(6,140.00) (6,140.00)
(6,140.00) (6,140.00)
(27,268.89) (110,141.17) (137,410.06)
263,318.32 162,214.98 425,533.30
$236,049.43 $52,073.81 $288,123.24
($380,281.12) ($147,178.53) ($527,459.65)
25.219.84 25,219.84
5,924.98 31,387.50 37,312.48
(1,287.53) (1,287.53)
(47.75) 5,475.00 5.427.25
{18,782.06) (18,782.06)
($369,253.64) ($110,316.03) ($479,569.67)
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LONG-TERM DEBT SCHEDULES

The Long-Term schedules are used to reflect the outstanding principal balances of the long-term
liabilities of the District. This includes obligations under Serial Bonds and Capital Leases.
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EXHIBIT "-3"

BOROUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOOL. DISTRICT
DERT SERVICE FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BURGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FiSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

BUDGET FINAL BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE
REVENUES:
Local sources:
Local tax levy $323,896.00 $323,896.00 $323,896.00
State Aid 151,104.00 151,104.00 151,104.00
Total revenues 475,000.00 475,000.00 475,000.00
EXPENDITURES;
Regular debt service:
Interest 35,000.00 35,000.00 35,000.00
Redemption of principal 440,000.00 440,000.00 440,000.00
TFotal reguiar debt service-expenditures 475,000.00 475,000.00 475,000.00
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures
Fund balance, July 1
Fund balance, June 30 $-0- $-0- $-0- $-0-
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STATISTICAL SECTION
(UNAUDITED)




BOROUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATISTICAL SECTION

Contents Page

Financial Trends:

These schadules contain trend information to help the reader understand how
the district's financial perfermance and well being have changed over time. J-1to J-4

Revenue Capacity:

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the district's
most significant local revenue source, the property tax, J-6 o J-9

Debt Capacity:
These schedules present information {o help the reader assess the affordability
of the district's current levels of outstanding debt and the district's ability to issue
additional debt in the future. J-10to J-13

Demaographic and Ecenomic Information:

These schedules offer demaographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the district's financial activities take place. J-14

Operating Information:
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand
how the information in the district's financial report relates to the services the district
B provides and the activities it performs. J-16 to J-20

Sources

Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the annual comprehensive
financial reports (ACFR) for the relevant vear.
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EXHIBIT "J-7"

BORQUGH OF MIDBLESEX SCHOOL DISTRICT
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES

UNAUDITED
Borough of Middlesex Board of Education Overlapping Rates
Year General Total Direct Total Direct and
Ended Obligation School Borough of Middiesex Overlapping
Dec 31, Basic Rate (a} Debt Service (b) Tax Rate Middlesex County Tax Rate
2020 $5.30 0.07 $5.37 $2.83 $1.23 $9.42
2019 5.19 0.07 5.26 2.68 1.23 9.17
2018 5.01 0.08 5.09 2.60 1.19 8.88
2017 4.83 0.08 4.9 2.56 1.17 8.64
2016 467 0.08 4,75 2.49 1.12 8.36
2015 4.54 G.08 462 2.44 1.13 818
2014 4.51 0.08 4.60 2.29 1.13 8.02
2013 4.26 0.10 4.36 232 1.12 7.80
2012 4,18 0.10 4.28 2.32 1.13 773
2011 4.09 0.10 4.19 2.25 1.42 7.56

Source: District Records and Municipal Tax Collector
(Rates are per $100 of assessed vaiue)

NJSA 18A:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a general fund tax levy. The levy when
added to other components of the district's net budget may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by
more than the spending growth limitation calculated as follows: the prebudget year net budget increased
by the cost of living or 2.5 percent, whichever is greater, plus any spending growth adjustments.

{a) The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the AdF form which is submitted with the budget and the Net
valuation taxable

{b) Rates for debt service are hased on each year's requirements.
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Fiscal Year
Ended
June 30,

2021
2020
2019
2018
2017
20186
2015
2014
2013
2012

BORQUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

Taxes Levied
for the
Fiscal Year

$26,438,319.00
25,948,909.00
25,209,565.00
24,347,829.00
23,565,281.00
22,886,695.00
22,412,494.00
21,701,153.00
21,301,087.00
20,907,747.00

UNAUDITED

Collected within the Fiscal Year of the Levy (a)

Amount

$26,438,319.00
25,848,809.00
25,209,665.00
24,347,829.00
23,565,281.00
22,886,695.00
22,412,484.00
21,701,153.00
21,301,087.00
20,907,747.00

Percentage

of Levy

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)

EXHIBIT "J-8"

Collections in

Subseguent Years

$0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
G.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

Note: School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality is
required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in is the amount voted upon or certified prior
to the end of the school year.
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Fiscal Year
Ended
June 30

2021
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013
2012

BORQUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOOL DISTRICT

RATIOS OF NET BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING
UNAUDITED

General Bonded Debt Qutstanding

General
Obligation
Bonds

$435,000.00
875,000.00
1,330,000.00
1,785,000.00
2,265,000.00
2,745,000.00
3,235,000.00
3,875,000.00
4,315,000.00
4,765,000.00

Deductions

Net General
Bonded Debt

Qutstanding

$435,000.00
875,000.00
1,330,000.00
1,795,000.00
2,265,000.00
2,745,000.00
3,235,000.00
3,875,000.00
4,315,000.00
4,765,000.00

Percentage of
Actual Taxable
Value {a) of
Property

0.08851%
0.17803%
0.26978%
0.36261%
0.45660%
0.55348%
0.65241%
0.77937%
0.86696%
0.95650%

EXHIBIT "J-11"

Per Capita (b)

$32.13

£64.63

97.27
131.54
166.54
201.65
236.85
282.72
315.31
348.01

Note: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
{(a) See Exhibit NJ J-6 for property tax data.
{b) Population data can be found in Exhibit NJ J-14.
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EXHIBIT "J-12"

BOROUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOOL DISTRICT
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020

UNAUDITED
Estimated Estimated Share
Debt Percentage of Overlapping

Governmental Unit Qutstanding Applicable {a} Debt
Debt repaid with property taxes

Middlesex Borough $17,673,132.25 100.00% $17.673,132.25
Other debt

Middlesex County 437,455,272.00 0.7660% 3,350,724.00

Middlesex County Utilities Authority 118,974,528.00 1.7400% 2,070,157.00
Subtotal, overlapping debt $23,094,013.25
Middiesex Borough School District Direct Debt §75,000.00
Total direct and overlapping debt $23,969,013.25

Source: Borough of Middlesex Chief Financial Officer, Middiesex County Treasurer's Office and Middlesex
County Utilities Authority.

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the District.

This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and
businesses of Middlesex. This process recognizes that, when considering the District's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the
entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses shouid be taken into account. However this does not imply that

every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping payment,

(a) For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property

values. Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of another governmental unit's taxable value that is within
the district's boundaries and dividing it by each unit's total taxable value.

143



's2dA) 1ou1s1p S840 0} Sige0ddr Bg BINOM S| % JAUI0 JoSIP g1 UBnoiUl X B 103 61-pT 8L VST N AG 138 wry ()
uopexe ), 40 uolsmi ‘Anseal ) 30 wawurdac ‘Aesisr man JO 911G aul Jo Hoday {enuuy SY) L0 POLIEIGO S19M SSEQ UCHENEA PaZiendy [20in0g

%06, %084 %ZYL %log Y%li'G %eR'y %1L6°E %00°€ %BL'E %LE' L HWITIGRG 40 % B 5B
I 3Y; ) sgesddy
1080 19N 18104
ZGI6LLEEDO%  GO0SE'EL6'/6S  £1'98Y /PE'ESS  [L60//06CSS L /86C/BZSS  SECPS0L0'PSS  [ZALFES'EGE 6P 'BOS'ORC'SSS C0'101°'90.°668 E£0B0C'SIZ'EoS uiBiew 1q8Q 1eban
00000°SLZ'S 00°000°G9L ¥ 00000GIE ¥ DO'GO0'SPLE 00 000'SEZ'E 00°000°SP.L°E 000005922 00’0006, L 00°000°0EE"L 00°000°6/8 i o) aqesiddy
98¢ 18N €301
TEI6L'OVE'SOS  S0°0BE'2.9'T9%  ©L'98Y'Z99'95S  LLBOLBSO'BSE L1 2B6L0L9SS  GEEPGSLE'0GE  LZ2LV'UEBUGS 6P BOE'LBE'BGY 00'LCL'9E0’LYS  SO'G0C080'P9S HITR BLET
116% A} ET0¢ Fioe §ige Sr0z T10e B0z 8loc 0202
"L£ lequisdag Bupug Jea) Jepusied
COBOL'SLT COg wibizp 1geq ebe
{(00°000's 28} Hwin o} siqeoiddy 199G 1N @10,
£0'60£'060'79 {anren uolez)jenba abaseae Jo (g} %) HWITIGeQ

«E1-F. LIgHXS

A3LanvNn

L95ZL'IST'E0Y 1S

00°241'€22°'908'V8

NOILYWHOANI NIDWYIW 1930 Tv031
LOTHLSIG TO0HOS X3531AdIN 20 H2NOHO0E

00°422'094'658°L
00" L¥8'0EC'0KS’L
00'804'Z8L'0LLLS

Auadoid sjqexe] jo uonenies, paziendy abetsay

310z
6102
0L0Z

IBBA JBpUBED

SIS0y UCHEN|E/, DIZNEntg

144



EXHIBIT "J-14"

BOROQUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOOL DISTRICT
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

UNAUDITED
Per Capita Unemployment
Year Population (a) Personal Income (b) Personal income (c) Rate (d}
2020 13,539 N/A NIA 10.10%
2019 13,673 $867,647,561.00 $63,457.00 3.50%
2018 13,646 832,569,752.00 61,012.00 3.80%
2017 13,600 792,730,400.00 58,289.00 4.10%
2018 13,613 771,258,128.00 56,656.00 4.10%
2015 13,670 752,219,090.00 55,027.00 4,90%
2014 13,706 739,630,584.00 £3,964.00 6.20%
2013 13,685 718,120,375.00 52,475.00 7.80%
2012 13,692 731,632,020.00 53,435.00 5.90%
2011 13,661 696,191,882.00 50,962.00 5.80%

Source:

(a) Population information provided by the NJ Dept. of Labor and Workforce Development.

{b) Personal income has been estimated based upon the municipal population and per capita personal incorme presented,

{c) Per capita perscnal income by municipality was computed using Census Bureau midyear population estimates.
Estimates for 2011-2020 reflect county population.

{d) Unemployment data provided by the NJ Dept. of Labor and Workforce Development.

N/A - Not Available
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BOROUGH OF MIDDLESEX SCHOOL DISTRICT

INSURANCE SCHEDULE

New Jersey School Boards Association
Insurance Group
Property Coverage:
Blanket Real and Personal Property
Blanket Extra Expense
Blanket Valuable Papers and Records
Sublimits:
Flood, All Other Zones

Electronic Data Processing:
Blanket Hardware
Equipment Coverage:
Property Damage
Perishable Goods
Expediating Expenses
Hazardous Substance Cleanup
Crime Coverage:
Faithful Performance Limit
Forgery and Altercation
Money and Securities Limit
Money Orders/Counterfeit Currency Limit
Computer Fraud
Public Official Bond Limit - Board Secretary
Public Official Bond Limit - Board Treasurer
General Liability Coverage:
Bodily injury and Property Damage
Employee Benefit Liability
Sexual Abuse
Terrorism Sub-Limit
Automobile Coverage:
Bodily Injury and Property Damage
Uninsured/Underinsured Motorists
Personal Injury Protection
Medical Paymenis
School Leaders Errors & Omissions Liability:
Coverage A
Coverage B:

Workers Compensation
Part One: Workers Compensation:
Part Two: Employers' Liability:
Bodily Injury By Accident:
Bodily Injury By Disease:
Bodily Injury By Disease:

lilinois Union Insurance Company (Westchester/Chubb)

Premises Pollution Liability

Source: District Records

JUNE 30, 2021
UNAUDITED

Coverage Amount

$500,000,000.00 per occurrence

50,000,000.00
10,000,000.00

75,000,000.00 per building
per occurrence

1,545,000.00 per occurrence

100,000,000.00
1,000,000.00
1,000,000.00
1,000,000.00

250,000.00
250,000.00

50,000.00

50,000.60
250,000.00
100,000.00
270,000.00

31,000,000.00
31,000,000.00
17,000,000.00

1,000,000.00

31,000,000.00
1,000,000.00
250,000.00
10,000.00

31,000,000.00

100,000.00 Each Claim
300,000.00 Policy Limit

Statutory

3,000,000.00
3,000,000.00
3,000,000.00

1,000,000.00 Policy Aggregate

EXHIBIT "J-20"

Dedugtible

$5,000.00
5,000.00
5,000.00

500,000.00
10,000.00

1,000.00

5.000.00

1,000.00
1,000.00

500.00

500.00
1,0002.00
1,000.00
1,000.00

1,000.00

1,000.00

5,000.00
5,000.00

10,000.00

Each Poliution
Condition
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EXHIBIT *K-1"

SUuPLEE, CLOONEY & CoOMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122

Telephone 908-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535

E-mail info%scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF BASIC FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Borough of Middlesex School District
County of Middlesex

Middlesex, New Jersey 08846

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Audifing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities and each major fund of the Borough of Middlesex
School District, in the County of Middlesex, State of New Jersey (the "District") as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the District's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 31, 2022.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal controf exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A matlerial weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the District's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significart deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.
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SuprLEE, CLOONEY & CoMPANY

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might
be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’'s financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed {ests of its compliance with certain provisions of
faws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. However, we noted an immaterial
instance of noncompliance that we have reported fo the Board of Education of the Borough of
Middiesex School District in a separate Auditor's Management Report on Administrative Findings —
Financial and Compliance dated January 31, 2022.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not {o provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

CERTIFIED pUBLIC ZCOUNTZNTS

PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTANT NO. 948

January 31, 2022
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EXHIBIT “K-2"

SuprLEE, CLooONEY & COMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
308 Kast Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122
Telephone 908-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535

E-mail infod@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL
AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 15-08

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Borough of Middlesex School District
County of Middlesex

Middlesex, New Jersey 08846

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program

We have audited the Borough of Middlesex School District’s, in the County of Middlesex, State
of New Jersey (the “District”) compliance with the types of compiiance requirements described in the
OMB Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on each of the District's major federal and state programs for
the year ended June 30, 2021. The District’'s major federal and state programs are identified in the
summary of auditor’'s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal and state statutes, regulations, and
the terms and conditions of its federal and state awards applicable to its federal and state programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is o express an opinion on compliance for each of the District's major
federal and state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the
audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance)
and New Jersey OMB 15-08. Those standards, the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB 15-08
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on a major federal or state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence about the District's compliance with those requirements and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each

major federal and state program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the
District's compliance.
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SurLEE, CLooNEY & COMPANY

Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2021,

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered District’s internal control over compliance with the
types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal and state
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal and state program and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and New
Jersey OMB 15-08, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal controf over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal and state program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over compliance and the resulis of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance and State of New Jersey OMB 15-08. Accordingly, this report
is not suitable for any other purpose.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOURTANTS

ot 1/ 9\

PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTANT NO. 948

January 31, 2022

154



JTUIBISISSE EIDUBLY SIEIS DU SPIEME [BIADS] JO SEINIPLBCXD JO $BNPAYDS 01 $810u DusAuethucnie 38g

R 19/£2'88 {72 PE'ERLS) 0 {2y 9676415} S8 S.06EL 1S 05 g% J02'9Z78)
9GLE (65 845'224) (8249674284 DOGUL 818 0z obL’2LE)
1951 E 6E LLGEEL) 00 LBY'HEL OOEBYEEL  OZALOL - 0T/9L
{85'ChE'Z51) l65'208'987} 00'G56'ED DOSPZErE  PRIOESOTIELE
{00'geg 528! (00°£92'88S} 00'956'4 LE (00°9.45'96}
o098/ o0 gss 2L} 082S 00 T6LLL LZI0E/E - BTILIL
onZeE'r (oozae's) DO'BEL'ZL OTARIE -G
{00 Lov'aig) 00" LL0'9Es) DO #09'B0T DOLIO'OZS 2L - DTN
OpEL'ZE (00 #5626} DOBES'O0S  OZIGE/E - BLILIL
(00 28 9rT) (08 8Ly 21y 00401292 0z reL’L2L)
(E€'650'LL) (z6'650'22) 68601 BS PO 1S LZIOEI6 - OZiLiL
LeLog't (T AN} 48 00°LLE'LY  OZ/OSE - BLILIL
(68282 'vb) (6a292'8%) 00000’y 0UDLYSE  LZHEIE - 02
{00'000'EL) OBOO'EL 00'BYE'Z.  OZ/OR/B - BLILL
(82'829'061) (66'019'8T¢€} 12806261 \ZER0LES  LEAOSIE T OTILIL
6LTEC'BLL (6 2EE'6LL)  DOESL'SLE  OZ/OT/E * BLILL
0729'9 {£ras51Ls) (¥8'Z02 'cor} S0°861 pre {82 26v'8)
ao'rie) (00 L9} Qo'Fi9 LEHOEIS - O2fLIL
902299 (£} ZpS'0L) {79'885'66E) S0°891L e {82 i6v'8)
{05 0sE'D) 05 OsEY 05'08¢ LZHOEID - OZIL
0Z'1B2'E {oz'182'e) QOBBK'OL  OT/OE/S - BLLIL
(ZO'SLY'6) ea'eza'olLl) L6802 40 TEESRPLL  LEOE/S - O2MIL
(2092520 (£0'9L5°2r) 0945’2y LZ/OEG - OLML
(oG t68's) 051689 05'L68'9 LZI0TI9 - 0TIl
SH90L'% {go'so2'5) PO'ZES'SL  OZTMOEIO - LI
(80°196°81L8) {29'596'561) PEPLELLL Z9GEEE6L  LEOEE - ORI
90'2Z9'9s (0Z'186'2€} ZE'E09'BE 26'€00°6E LZAIEIS * 02
(0g'00z’9L) o8 0029
(120208 L4 0LP'S 92754 L2H0EI8 - O2rLiL
(21'a08e) 21098 zi08R'e LZI0E/9 - DE/LIL
(16'698'29%) 16'698'78% IB699'ZOE  LEOT/Y - O2N/L
BOINVHE ETITERER] [ERELZNERER] SIENLCNTSRT  SIENLaONSdRS [HEIERER] INSWISHFGY G202 60 aNid  INNOWY [seIEEE]
QL 309 AanNEYann SANOODIDY AHYLADANE AHYLAOUINE v aHvMY ANTHD
1Z0Z 0% INAT LY I0NYIvE ANFIHdIDIYENS IoNYIvE

ELECEREE
LR

L20¢ 0€ ANAT OJONS ¥v¥EA TYOSIS SML 504

SOEVAY TYEIT R 0 SFUNIONTaNT 30 3TUIRIE

LE5°02L518

e1502i5-12

FZOPLEVRCH
QZoyLEVIQH
LEOvievad
0ZOVLEYICH

LEOFLEETION
QZoPLERTION
LZOVLEETON
OZOVLESION
LZQPLEETIDN
020FLEETON

W

N
WIN
N
YN
VN
N
YN
WIN

¥iN
YN
YN

HIGWNN

L133rCud
ALYLS

HO INVED

L20002052rS

PLLOBLYELLH
PLLOBLYELLH
Q0LOOZYLZOH
DOLOBLYZZOM

QEO00LYSEES
020061 VG8ES
620002V .BES
GIN06LYLSES
0£000ZV0108
OE00S L Y010

LPE006SLZLE0E

GE0LNFOEINLLE
B80LNPOErNIOT
G6B0LNYOEMNLLE
LPE0LLHLELZ0E
SEQLNPOErNL LY
BBOLNFOErNLQT
GEOLNYOEMNLLE
GBOLNTOErNLLT

dWWEINSOOT
dYWSINS00Z
VRSNG00

Nivd
WH3GE34

61018

Qsgr v

£LLv8
4L PR
L20v8
L2V

598
598
A9€7%8
L9E VR
oLo'vR
oLov8

6o 0L

£5501
8504
€454 08
S85'0F
G550L
8504
5SS 0L
S55°01L

9LL¢6
8LLE6
#LLE6

¥Q30
WH30B

SDIEMY BiBDA 4 10 SAINNIPLBdx G (#io ]

pUNZ AnUBAaY jE108UY |RI0)

Buiieat acway ¢ Buadg-ay 100uyns

Pung j9ydy piy SRABUCICD
uoneanpy jo wawnedag Aeg ubnesyi-passed
Amseal] o wawwedsg g n

t ¥3ASST - SRS GIADD
‘U4 LOREZIICETS LORRINPS $HED CIACD

jsnis uoliesnpd (enads oL
100U9SDId-G Bed WA

H00USSRIA-E Had YR

MSRE '8 Wed Y'I3Q

wseq 'gued va gl

JaIsN{D) LoReDnpR _M_uwnw g Hed ¢R'gY

YRS 3 eoL

v b i oL
v uBg - ANl
e

Lol
NECE

UONEINP 0 JUBWUEDaE B1e1S UBNOII-pBESSEy

uoREDNP3 JO WaWPEedag 'S A
SPUNS ANUBARY [21D80G

pung asudiaiuz jejo)

WRLISINGUWIRY 1507 SAIRNSINUPY | HH-o
)
FBISNLD LORANN PIYD BI04y
61 praoD -wesbosg jsepesig [00YIS [BUOTENT—
6L PIA0Y -WeIBoid 1SeJNERE |O0UDS [BUOTEN
Wb 1583809 |004IS BUChEN
wiesbosg 1507 jeuonesadg Aauabiawy
61 prho7) -wetbBoid Yound ooyos jeucien
81 p1aoD weiiold YounT jooyds [euoHEN
webosg younT 10043S [guaneN
sanpowwod - wesbolg yaunt [oyag EucheN
HRNSMID JOUANN DIMD

uolEINRY JO Jsuipedsq aieis ubnog-passed

aanprouby Jo Jsuniedss 'SR
spung asudiaug

pun [RIBUSE) [RI0L

(YN weibiord aoUeIISSY PIRDIDSIN
w4 -GS weibosg eauEsIssy predipapw
(NS} we:boid aIURISISSY PIENDOI
uonEdINpY Jo juswredsy ST
$IAMST UBWNM PUE UL JO jUawuedsg
purg [RUaD

LI WYHDOHSHOLNYED
HONOHHL-SSY/HOINYYEO TYu30a34



BOURISISSE (RIOUBLY S1BS PUE SPIBME J2IAPB) O SSIpUadXa Jo

0} sajou Suk

805

— —
(6C'602°SYY'ZIS) DVGLILBOTNS
00680 {00'eg0'2)
00'82E'5LZF {00'8ze'ss2'y
00'YPE' L8 {00 vve's8)
00 PLLISHEL GOresaey)
vG'EOE'RIL'OTS GL 207 L2 1S -0$ GHRI00Le8) EE] OBRE/G0SS  (BLRRELGLBLEY  OvieL'sal lig -$ 07 952'6re LY
00 ¥0L LG (LRGP 00 FO 1S}
Q0'EEY 2SE 00¥EE 0L L (00ve6'95 L) (0 ¥EE 91 EY 00819658 {00'616'5e8)
00'%E6'LE 09'rEs'01L 00°¥£8'91) DorEaLL)
ou'eLT s 00'9iZ' 8 (coraiz've)
00'¥TEZZH OOPEETL (o0vzezzy)
00'625°829 00'6.6'625 (c0'6.26'3z8)
£ECPLEL LLB8Y'T {£1'88v2) (BEESH 04} 04’0850 55602
£2TPL 6L L1'89rZ 1 8av 8 {6E°e55'01) 9,085 0 {y5'56£'T)
BE'ES9 0L I1'86F2 {£1'888'7) (65 £5501) FraT TR ]
¥¥'680'6 ¥5588'2 ($5'668'D)
L1'FO0'SES 61 20500808 (ZoGLa055) UBEELS0L Qa'is1eeq L) HOL5984'08 105 177 208)
000L¥EEN T Z0UECETH Zoeeszel (C0'62¥E20L) §6'9E6 098
L1'668'952 9LOT LY {g9¢82'85)
00680°2 (cosep') 006802
00'628'SLT ¥ (co'828'5L2'F) 00'62€'542'F
covre'Le (©0¥re18) 0U'PYE 1Y
00'#1E'50C 4 {COPIESHEL) O0'PHESHE L
00'CLE 657 00'ELE 8BS 00'€LE'65%) (00'T4c'65%)
00'620'E8Y {00'198'pH) 00'6Z8'E6Y (00'BGE'BYYS)
0004482 CO0LLBT (co'orL'azs) {00'0LL'82)
oouse 00062 (00'062)
O0'ZED'EEL 00'¥BL'EE OOPBLEE {00'ze0'eee) 00°824'662
00'626'542 018 00'561L'P20' 1§ DOS6IFE0 VS (00625520 018)  ODFLt 16268
DO LSS [P 004185E {00 ¥¥E'SEE) 00225 EZC
00'L0'0£%'8 00'L81'088 00'481°098 (00'1£0'088'8) 00'988'69L°2
00'FL 'S8T 1S 00'LEL'SEIS o0 L6182 Qo¥iL9ge 1) 00'¢26' L5118
SEUNNONSINS  EIEVAESSY EQIEREN] [ENSEREN SHENY TV INGAISHFGY — SERRITRGaRY [ETERE HOINTEY VA RS
THLOL ARVLBOGNE QENNYENN SINNODDY  SHVBA HOING 2O AdviADaNa oLana "SL00V) BNNSATY
T e mm— ANBNAY RS JO— - |1 L -
ONEN TE0E 0F SNNT Ly SONY WS 0202 '0¢ annT Lv JONY v
o N REELEL FER
N 5
KN o8

S LRI

C0'6R0°2
CO'6ZL'SLT
COFPE LR
CO'PLT'SOE'L

0040151

OO vEE'slL
0C'SiZ're

DO'PZETZL
0O'645'329

EL°259°04
PHB0'6

COOLY'ETO"
LGB RST L
00'680'T
0062L'SLE Y
00'PPE L8
0 +LEs9L"
00'ELE'6SY
00'B28'T6Y
OBLLRE
o0'cez
00'ZE0'EEE

00 ¥PE'8EE
00 LAT0ES'S
00'¥1i'9BT 1S

TROCWY
qQHvmyY

LZ/OES - 02 WL
LTIOES - Q2L
VOB - 0TVL
LZAOER~ OH VL

WOEG - Q2L

RZICEI9 - Q2L
snouen
SNGUERA
snouen

LZ/0E/G - 0C/8L
OZOEQ - LI

LZi0E/M - 021
QZ/0E/0 - B LA
LTI - QL
L&ioeie - OEniL
1209 - 0TLL
1208 - 0L
12I0TS - 0T WL
0T/0T/9 - B1/ML
V088 - 0L
0202/9 - BULL
L C/08/S - DTIWL

FTIOE/9 - DTFHL
RHOER - 02
1RI0EI9 - QTILL,

GomiEd
ANVED

200-PE0SPEO-SE- 12
Z00-$605-PEC-SEY-12
YO0-9605-pE0-GE%-12
1007505 PEC-GEY- |

ppay aifiuig 0] 102lQNS F0UR|SISSY [eiDURLLY BIRlS (B10 L

saueInsy) AIGestp wie) Buol Avd, JEysq-uc
WOHRALIMeD utrslod Jyd), JENeq-ud

aouBInNSYl .EB:DE:nO UOU e, JEYBGUC
{2OIPOLI 1UaWAINS] 150 - UOISUAd JvdL JEYST-UC

‘suieBoug Sofeyy jO UORELIKIBISD 1) PEZHEN JOU SILNCWE JIEUYBE-UQ) 15507

GLO-DZLS-PE0-G6Y-LT

L00L-¥L-GRO-O¥IE
€00L-¢L-050-O¥1E
L00L-¥L-050-OFLE

CTO-0SEE-010-00L-4T
E2Z0-0SEE-0LD00L-02

£C0-r605PEQ-SEILT
00 #8056 PEDEE6F 0T
Z00-¥#605PE0-561 LT
EOO-FEOS-FEO-56F 1T
OO PEOG PEOGET LT
L00-PEOSPE0-SEY- 12
PO-0TLGPEC-SET-12
rro-0ZL 5 YEQ-SET-0E
¥19-0ZL5-¥EC-5E9-LT
P10-02Z18-PEC-36702
PHO-0ZISPED-GEP 1T

PRO-0ZLSHE056 1T
8L0-0ZL5-#E0-G60- 12
BRO-OZLS-PED B LZ

HHGWNN 1037 08d
2LYLS HO LNYED

soumsISSY IERUEU 21 je10)

asmieg 1000
‘pung e3ag 1990

pung spekig (eyded el

yes Kunoes jooysg
sapefidn Aunses satinely '3 uop
sapeifidpy Anoag ooyog ubiy
DWAH 7 1004 190428 YEIH

‘pung sisafosg jepden

pung asuciguy 0L

1BISRYD VERUINN PRYD 0L
widBoug YounT EoYdS DIRIS
weiboid yaun] jooyog eyels

BISND HOSUINN PIYD

pury nquB&@
L
Pung |IDUSD Eigd

SHOINQUINGS ANDRS IBIS0S ¥ 1 PASIGIAEY
SUCHRQUIICT ALNOSS {RI00S Jyd 1 PASINGWIRY
azuBinsy) Appaesip ws) Buc Judl JIBWeg-uo
LOINGLILOS LoIsued Jvid ], Heyeg-ugy
BIUEINSU] ACINGUIU0D LOU Jye ] JeYsT-u0
120ipaLy JAWeNga: IS0d - LDISUBY JYdL HBYSQ-LD
Py Aewpoenxy

piy Arewproeixg

PiY UOBBLOOSUERL L, {CO4DS nRGUeN

Py UOBRHCSURL ] (GOYDS dlgnduEH

phy yageuodsue |

400N PR SRS (ROt
pr Apnoeg
Piy uoezyendy
Py [2ouofisieD uogronpy [enacs

JAISNID PIY SIEIS
'Spund JEIuRE
dopEsnpg jo aluuedag eielg
T EEEIC



NOTE 1:

NOTE 2:

NOTE 3:

EXHIBIT "K-5"
Borough of Middlesex School District
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards
and State Financial Assistance
Year Ended June 30, 2021

GENERAL

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial
assistance include federal and state activity of the Board of Education, Middlesex
School District. The Board of Education is defined in Note 1 to the Board's basic
financial statements. All federal and state awards received directly from the
federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards and state financial
assistance passed through other government agencies is included on the schedule
of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and federal awards and
state financial assistance are presented on the budgetary basis of accounting with
the exceptions of programs recorded in the food service fund, which are presented
using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described in
Note 1 of the Board's basic financial statements. The information in this schedule
is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Uniform Guidance,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore,
some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in,
or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements. The District has
elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under
the Uniform Guidance.

ELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund
on a GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison statements or schedule (RSI) are
presented for the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-
regulated legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant
agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting,
revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have
been made.

The General fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified
accrual basis with the exception of the revenue recognition of the last state aid
payment in the current budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A.
18A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes, that payment is not recognized until the
subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and recording of the last state aid
payment in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the
accompanying schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis which
recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related
revenue, whereas GAAP basis does not.
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NOTE 3:

NOTE 4:

NOTE 5:

RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is
($33,919.00) for the general fund and ($11,519.90) for the capital projects fund. See
the notes to the required supplementary information for a reconciliation of the
budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and
special revenue funds. Federal awards and state financial assistance revenues are
reported in the Board's basic financial statements on a GAAP basis as follows:

Federal State Total

General Fund $76,200.80 $17,889,151.00 $17,965,351.80
Special Revenue Fund 1,321,561.78 1,321,561.78
Capital Projects Fund 116,934.00 116,934.00
Debt Service Fund 151,104.00 151,104.00
Food Service Fund 400,202.84 10,653.39 410,856.23
Total Awards &

Financial Assistance $1,797,965.42 $18,167,842.39 $19,965,807.81
GAAP Adjustment {45,438.90) {45 438.80)
Total: GAAP Basis $1,797,865.42 $18,122 403 .49 $19,920,368.91

RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported
in the related federal and state financial reports.

OTHER

Revenues and expenditures reported in the Food Distribution Program represent
current year value received and current year distributions respectively. The amount
reported as TPAF pension contributions, post retirement medical benefits and long
term disability insurance represents the amount paid by the state on behalf of the
district for the year ended June 30, 2021. TPAF Social Security contributions
represent the amount reimbursed by the state for the employer's share of Social
Security contributions for TPAF members for the year ended June 30, 2021.
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Borough of Middlesex School District

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Section | — Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

M
2)

(3)

Type of Auditor's Report Issued:
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting:
(a) Material weakness identified?

(b) Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to basic financial statements noted?

Federal Program(s)

M

(2)

4

®

6)

Internal Control Over Major Federal Programs:
(a) Material weakness identified?

{b) Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses?

Type of Auditor's Report issued on compliance for major federl
program(s)?

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance and listed in

Section lll of this schedule?

Identification of Major Federal Program(s):

CFDbA
Number Program

Coronavirus Aid Relief and Economic Security:

EXHIBIT "K-6"

Unmodified

No

No

No

No

No

Unmodified

No

84 425D COVID Cares Education Stabilization- ESSER |

21.019 School Re-Opening and Remote Learning

Program Threshold Determination:
Type A Federal Program Threshold > $750,000.00
Type B Federal Program Threshold <= $750,000.00

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under the Uniform Guidance?
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Borough of Middlesex School District

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Section | — Summary of Auditor’s Results (Continued)

State Program(s)

(1)

(3)

4

G}

Internal Control Over Major State Programs:
(a) Material weakness identified?

{b) Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses?

Type of Auditor's Report issued on compliance for major state
program(s)?

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with N.J. OMB Circular 15-08 and listed in Section
IH of this schedule?

ldentification of Major State Program(s):

Grant
Number Program
495-034-5120-044 Extraordinary Aid
State Aid Cluster:
495-034-5120-089 Special Education Categotical Aid
495-034-5120-078 Equalization Aid
495-034-5120-084 Security Aid

Program Threshold Determination:
Type A State Program Threshold > $750,000.00
Type B State Program Threshold <= $750,000.00

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under N.J. OMB Circular 15-087?
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No

No

Unmaodified

No

Yes



Borough of Middiesex School District
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Section It — Financial Statement Audit — Reported Findings Under Government Auditing
Standards

internal Control Findings

None Reported

Compliance Findings

None Reported

Section lil - Findings and Questioned Costs Relative to Major Federal and State Programs

Federal Programs — None Reported

State Programs — None Reported

161



EXHIBIT *K-7"

Borough of Middlesex School District

Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

Not Applicable
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